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Cigniti Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1998PLC030081
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of Cigniti Technologies Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”) (CIN:
L72200TG1998PLC030081) for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company is a public company domiciled
in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. Its shares are listed on two
recognised stock exchanges in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Dwarakapuri
Colony, Panjagutta, Hyderabad. The Group is principally engaged in providing Digital Assurance and
Engineering (Software testing) Services across the world.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 1, 2024.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

 Contingent consideration

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at March 31, 2024. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
 Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities

of the investee);
 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:
 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
 The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and
 The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of

the other voting rights holders.
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The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting
date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of
the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes,
additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the
parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedures:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the
acquisition date.

(b) Offset /eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any
related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognised in assets, such as property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.
Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and
losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Group Information:
Information about subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries listed in the table below:

Name Principal
activities

Place and Country
of operation

% equity interest
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cigniti Technologies Inc. Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

USA

100% 100%

Cigniti Technologies (UK)
Limited

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

UK

100% 100%

Cigniti Technologies
(Australia) Pty Ltd

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

Australia

100% 100%

Cigniti Technologies Canada
Inc

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

Canada

100% 100%

Gallop Solutions Private
Limited

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

India

100% 100%

Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte.
Ltd.

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

Singapore

100% 100%

Cigniti Technologies (CZ)
Limited s.r.o.

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

Czech Republic

100% 100%

Aparaa Digital Private
Limited

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

India

100% 100%

Roundsqr Inc. (dissolved on
January 30, 2023)

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

USA

- 100%

Roundsqr Pty Ltd. Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

Australia

100% 100%

Cigniti Technologies CR
Limitada

Digital Assurance
and Engineering
(Software testing)
Services

Costa Rica

100% 100%
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2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

(b) Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred
and the services are received, with the exception of the costs of issuing debt or equity securities that are
recognised in accordance with Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 109.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or
experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing
outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

 Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively.

 Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the
acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

 Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share
– based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the
acquisition date.

 Assets that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.
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 Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of
the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired
is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess
of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of
bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the
same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
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about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The
measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

(c) Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(d) Foreign currencies
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company’s
functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the
direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to
profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of the following:
 Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment

in a foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the
reporting entity or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the
financial statements that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated
financial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are
recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the net investment.
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 Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

 Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or statement of profit or loss are also recognised in OCI
or statement of profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

Group Companies
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to
translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose
before the date of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.

(e) Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

(f) Revenue from contracts with customer
The Group derives revenue primarily from Digital Assurance and Engineering (Software testing) Services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those services. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements since it is
the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit
risks. Revenue is net of volume discounts/price incentives which are estimated and accounted for based
on the terms of contract.

Rendering of services
The method for recognising revenues and costs depends on the nature of services rendered as mentioned
below:

 Time and material: Revenue from time and material contracts are recognised as the related services
are performed, which is pursued based on the efforts spent and agreed rate with the customer.
Revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue.

 Fixed price contracts: Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised as per the ‘percentage- of-
completion’ method, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and when there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is uncertainty as to
measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved. Percentage of completion is determined based on the project costs incurred to date as a
percentage of total estimated project costs required to complete the project. The input method has been
used to measure the progress towards completion as there is direct relationship between input and
productivity.
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Contract balances:
 Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If
the Group performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as unbilled revenue (contract assets).

 Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

 Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Other income
 Income from Government incentive:

Income from Services Exports from India Scheme ('SEIS') incentives under Government's Foreign
Trade Policy 2015-20 is recognised on expected realisable value based on effective rate of incentive
under the scheme, provided no significant uncertainty exists for the measurability, realisation and
utilisation of the credit under the scheme. The receivables related to SEIS scrips are classified as 'Other
financial assets' as "Export incentive receivable”.

 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and rate applicable in the transaction.

 Earnings and losses from investments is recognised based on changes in fair value of investments
during the year and are reported on net basis.

 Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on net basis.

(g) Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in OCI or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provision where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
OCI or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related
to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at
the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are
recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.
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GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except:

 When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable.

 When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Property, plant and equipment under installation or under construction as at balance sheet are shown as
capital work-in-progress, and the related advances are shown as loans and advances.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived
at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The management has made technical assessment
of the useful lives of the following classes of assets which coincides with the lives prescribed under
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset Useful lives estimated by the
management (years)

Buildings 60

Electrical equipment 10

Leasehold improvements Over the period of lease

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipments 5

Computer and computer equipments 3

Vehicles 8

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

(j) Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives

Software licenses 3 years

Customer relationships 3 years

Non-compete fees 3 years
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If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash-
Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

ROU Useful lives

Office premises 3-5 years
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Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for the Group’s CGU. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period
of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. After impairment, amortisation is
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or
group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

(l) Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
 A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will

not be required to settle the obligation.
 A present obligation arising from past events, when it cannot be measured reliably.
 A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance
sheet date.
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Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination
A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

(m) Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined contribution
schemes. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the fund. The Group
recognises contribution payable to these schemes as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The Group also provides certain additional post employment healthcare
benefits to employees in the United States. These healthcare benefits are unfunded.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
 The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss:

 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

 Net interest expense or income.

Short term employee benefits
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
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However, the Group presents the entire provision towards accumulated leave as a current liability in the
balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after
the reporting date.

(n) Hired contractors cost
Hired contractors cost represents cost of technical sub-contractors for service delivery to the Group’s
customers. These costs are accrued based on services received from the sub-contractors in line with the
terms of the contract.

(o) Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Share-Based Payment (SBP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss
expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

(p) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section
Revenue from contracts with customers.

For a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and

losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of

Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
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instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are
not subject to impairment assessment.

The Group elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and

i. the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
ii. the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.
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The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
 Other financial assets

The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Group evaluates individual balances to determine impairment loss allowance
on its trade receivables. The evaluation is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense/
income in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
statement of profit and loss. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and contractual revenue
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. For assessing increase
in credit risk and impairment loss, the group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, contingent consideration and loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and cash credits.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Contingent consideration)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets
The group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change
in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external
or internal changes which are significant to the group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external
parties. A change in the business model occurs when the group either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations. If the group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The group does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

(r) Segment information
The Group has only one reportable business segment, which is rendering of Digital Assurance and
Engineering (Software testing) Services. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements
relate to the Group’s single business segment.

(s) Dividend
The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution
is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

(t) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of
parent company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to
participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue,
bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.4 New and amended standards

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Group has not early adopted any other standard or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Group’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on
the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial statements.



Cigniti Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1998PLC030081
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to
Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such
as leases.

The Group previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these
amendments, the Group has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities
and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset
as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. There
was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at April 01, 2022.

2.5 Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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3. Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Buildings Electrical
equipments

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and
fixtures

Office
equipments

Computer and
computer

equipment

Vehicles Total property,
plant and

equipment

Cost
As at April 1, 2022                193.53                536.36                     317.10                   578.09                361.21             3,423.67                187.98                 5,597.94
Additions                         -                    1.84                       98.61                             -                  14.62                903.43                  52.13                 1,070.63
On account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41)                         -                         -                               -                       0.38                         -                  12.88                         -                      13.26
Exchange differences                         -                         -                               -                     20.77                    0.61                  56.23                    3.22                      80.83
As at March 31, 2023                193.53                538.20                     415.71                   599.24                376.44             4,396.21                243.33                 6,762.66
Additions                         -                186.78                     113.82                     15.15                130.55                356.56                         -                    802.86
Disposals                         -                         -                               -                             -                         -                         -              (229.00)                  (229.00)
Exchange differences                         -                         -                               -                       3.80                    9.78                  13.70                         -                      27.28
As at March 31, 2024                193.53                724.98                     529.53                   618.19                516.77             4,766.47                  14.33                 7,363.80

Depreciation
As at April 1, 2022                  25.13                236.79                     177.94                   407.03                281.27             1,145.12                  66.24                 2,339.52
Charge for the year                    4.25                  55.27                       21.51                     27.14                  53.59             1,151.75                  24.90                 1,338.41
Exchange differences                         -                         -                               -                     20.55                    0.61                  39.19                    3.28                      63.63
As at March 31, 2023                  29.38                292.06                     199.45                   454.72                335.47             2,336.06                  94.42                 3,741.56
Charge for the year                    4.26                  54.30                       39.25                     27.25                  41.61             1,207.97                  23.54                 1,398.18
Disposals                         -                         -                               -                             -                         -                         -              (104.30)                  (104.30)
Exchange differences                         -                         -                               -                       3.77                    9.76                  11.80                    0.67                      26.00
As at March 31, 2024                  33.64                346.36                     238.70                   485.74                386.84             3,555.83                  14.33                 5,061.44

Net book value
As at March 31, 2023                164.15                246.14                     216.26                   144.52                  40.97             2,060.15                148.91                 3,021.10
As at March 31, 2024                159.89                378.62                     290.83                   132.45                129.93             1,210.64                         -                 2,302.36

Property, plant and equipment
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3. Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Software
license

Customer
relationship

Non-compete
fee

Total other
intangible assets

Cost
As at April 1, 2022                246.66                         -                               -                   246.66
Additions                         -                         -                               -                             -
On account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41)                879.74                     763.98                1,643.72
Exchange differences                         -                         -                               -                             -
As at March 31, 2023                246.66                879.74                     763.98                1,890.38
Additions                         -                         -                               -                             -
Exchange differences                         -                         -                               -                             -
As at March 31, 2024                246.66                879.74                     763.98                1,890.38

Amortisation
As at April 1, 2022 246.66 - -                                               246.66
Charge for the year - 219.93 191.00                   410.93
Exchange differences - - -                             -
As at March 31, 2023 246.66 219.93 191.00                   657.59
Charge for the year - 293.25 254.66                   547.91
Exchange differences - - -                                                         -
As at March 31, 2024 246.66 513.18 445.66                1,205.50

Net book value
As at March 31, 2023 - 659.81 572.98 1,232.79
As at March 31, 2024 - 366.56 318.32 684.88

Other intangible assets
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3.1

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 7,396.83 5,486.22
Add: On account of acquisition of subsidiary (refer note 41) - 1,910.61
Closing balance 7,396.83 7,396.83

a.   Revenue growth and EBITDA Margins based on approved financial budgets
b.   Discount rates arrived based on capital structure of peer group in accordance with Ind AS 36
c.   Growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period, based on the long term average growth rate for the industry.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations
The calculation of value in use for the units is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

The Group believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash generaing units.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined being higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is calculated using cash
flow projections from financial budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period and fair value is computed using comparable multiple method.
The projected cash flows are based on financial assumptions that are derived from the integrated results of economic outlook, industry outlook, project analysis,
historical financial analysis etc. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the current year is 9.26%-15.85%(March 31,
2023: 11.32%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 3.1%-3.2% growth rate (March 31, 2023: 5.9%) that is the same as the long-term
average growth rate for the industry. It was concluded that fair value less cost of disposal approximates value in use which is higher than the carrying value. As a
result of this analysis, management has not recognised any impairment charge for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations of Cigniti Inc, Gallop Solutions Inc, Cigniti Software Services Private Limited, Aparaa Digital Private Limited
and Gallop Solutions Private Limited has been allocated to its Cash Generating Unit (CGU) for impairment testing which represents the lowest level within the
Group at which the Goodwill is monitored.

Carrying amount of goodwill

Impairment testing of goodwill
The Group performed its annual impairment test as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. Based on the approved business plan and valuation assessment, the
management of the Group expects growth in operations and sustained profitability. The projections of the business is above the book value of its equity, indicating
no signs of impairment of goodwill. Accordingly, these Consolidated Financial Statements do not include any adjustment relating to impairment of goodwill.
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Financial assets
There are no loans or deposits given, covered under section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013.

4(a) Non-current investments
 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments of other entities (unquoted)
Nil (March 31, 2023: 17,774) equity shares of $ 0.00, each fully paid-up in Lambda Testing Inc.* - 82.19
13,322 (March 31, 2023: 13,332) equity shares of $ 0.01, each fully paid-up in Simnovus Corporation 83.38 82.19
23,200 (March 31, 2023: Nil) equity shares of $0.00, each fully paid-up in Loquat Inc.* 166.77 -
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Preferred instruments of other entities (unquoted)
100 (March 31, 2023: Nil) compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 fully paid-up in Hirexai Private Limited 25.00 -

275.15 164.38
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 275.15 164.38
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
* Investments par value rounded off to nearest two decimal.

4(b) Current investments
 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Valued at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in bonds, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 10,130.75 8,155.41
Investment in debentures, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 8,569.89 4,122.28
Investment in commercial paper, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 2,128.89 -
Investment in mutual funds, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 3,884.67 5,286.23

24,714.20 17,563.92
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 24,714.20 17,563.92
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 24,714.20 17,563.92
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

Units Amount Units Amount
Bonds
Bharat Bond ETF 80,000.00 1,082.06 80,000.00 1,002.20
India Grid Trust 60,000.00 644.89 60,000.00 643.21
Bank of Baroda 49.00 504.60 49.00 504.37
State Bank of India 15.00 626.51 60.00 619.23
Mahindra & Mahindra 500.00 519.97 110.00 1,039.28
Shriram Transport Finance 440.00 4,593.48 220.00 2,271.89
Aditya Birla 50.00 578.73 50.00 531.95
Bajaj Finance 50.00 531.12 50.00 512.60
Kotak Mahindra 500.00 543.50 500.00 500.46
Punjab National Bank 50.00 505.89 - -
IIFL Home Finance Ltd - - 50.00 530.22

A 10,130.75 8,155.41
Debentures
Non-convertible debentures of L & T Finance MLD 200.00 2,214.33 200.00 2,056.27
Non-convertible debentures of HDB Financial Services 50.00 502.24 - -
Non-convertible debentures of Muthoot Finance Ltd 112,000.00 3,200.18 - -
Non-convertible debentures of ICICI HFCL 100.00 1,109.69 200.00 2,066.01
Non-convertible debentures of Bharti Telecom 1,500.00 1,543.45 - -

B 8,569.89 4,122.28
Commercial Paper
360 One Wam Limited 460.00 2,128.89 - -

C 2,128.89 -
Mutual Funds
Kotak Debt hybrid -Growth Regular Plan 1,278,681.66 670.14 1,278,681.66 571.29
Kotak Credit Risk Fund - Growth Regular Plan 2,434,478.82 655.18 2,434,478.82 605.33
Axis Regular Saver Fund - Regular Growth (ISGPG) - - 3,280,338.03 803.93
Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund - Growth-Direct Plan 138,826.44 915.07 138,826.43 848.86
Aditya Birla Sun Life Regular Savings Fund Regular Plan Growth - - 1,870,167.65 985.74
ICICI Prudential PAMP Asset Allocation Fund (FOF)_Growth 508,022.72 524.98 508,022.72 432.38
ICICI PLFRAG Medium Term Bond Fund Growth 1,134,765.86 457.86 1,134,765.86 426.21
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund- Direct Plan 132,407.63 661.44 132,407.63 612.49

D 3,884.67 5,286.23
(A+B+C+D) 24,714.20 17,563.92

Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI include investments in equity shares of non-listed companies. The Group holds non-controlling interests in these companies. These
investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through OCI as the Group considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
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5 Other financial assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bank deposits with remaining maturity more than twelve months 224.53 1,413.50 - -
Margin money deposits (having remaining maturity of more than twelve months) - 579.16 - -
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable - - 317.01 309.71
Other receivables - - 912.53 -
Security deposits 739.25 578.71 78.84 76.08
Export incentive receivable (refer note 38(b)(ii)) - - 1,770.78 1,770.78
Unbilled receivables (refer note 6.2) - - 7,403.55 9,490.76

963.78 2,571.37 10,482.71 11,647.33

6 Trade receivables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade receivables, considered good - Unsecured 32,577.26 25,879.91
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (713.61) (364.49)
Trade receivables, credit impaired - Unsecured - -
Less: Allowance for credit impairment - -

31,863.65 25,515.42

6.1 Movement in the provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 364.49 399.77
Provision made during the year, net 346.08 99.23
Bad debt written-off - (151.32)
Exchange differences 3.04 16.81
Balance at the end of the year 713.61 364.49

6.2 Ageing schedule - Trade receivables and unbilled receivables
As at March 31, 2024

Less than 6
Months

6 months – 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed receivables
Considered good          7,403.55             23,739.49                8,457.22               196.26                  86.77                            -                                97.52                     32,577.26
Credit impaired                       -                         -                             -                         -                          -                              -                                      -                                   -
Total          7,403.55             23,739.49                8,457.22               196.26                  86.77                            -                              97.52                     32,577.26
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses                        (713.61)
Balance as at year end          7,403.55                     31,863.65

As at March 31, 2023

Less than 6
Months

6 months – 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed receivables
Considered good          9,490.76             20,598.81                5,119.77                 44.82                  12.78                      44.01                              59.72                     25,879.91
Credit impaired                       -                         -                             -                         -                          -                              -                                      -                                 -
Total          9,490.76             20,598.81                5,119.77                 44.82                  12.78                      44.01                              59.72                     25,879.91
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses                        (364.49)
Balance as at year end          9,490.76                     25,515.42

Unbilled
receivables

There are no disputed trade receivables in current and previous year.
No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally with the credit term of 0 to 90 days.

Expected credit losses (ECL): The Company provides for ECL under the simplified approach from 1%-5% for trade receivables outstanding between 0-90 days and freely up to 100% for
trade receivables of more than 90 days based on past trends.

Current, not
due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total

Non current Current

Current, not
due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total

Trade receivablesUnbilled
receivables
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7 Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance with banks
-On current accounts 10,366.78 4,339.62
-Remittance in transit - 22.47

Unpaid dividend 29.60 16.50
Cash on hand 0.07 0.20

10,396.45 4,378.79

7.1 For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 7) 10,396.45 4,378.79
Less: Cash credit facility (refer note 14) (3,493.44) (3,043.67)

6,903.01 1,335.12

8 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other deposit accounts
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 224.53 1,413.50 5,650.11 6,295.70
Margin money - 579.16 - -
Less: Amount disclosed under other financial assets (refer note 5) (224.53) (1,992.66) - -

- - 5,650.11 6,295.70
Fixed deposits amounting to Rs.1,810 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,700 lakhs) are subject to charge to fulfil collateral requirements of cash credit facility from bank.

8.1 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities and non-cash investing activities

Financing activities
 April 1, 2023  Addition Cashflows Others*  March 31, 2024

Lease liabilities            2,532.90 948.43                (1,421.06)                            169.76                       2,230.03
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,532.90 948.43 (1,421.06) 169.76 2,230.03

 April 1, 2022  Addition Cashflows Others*  March 31, 2023
Short-term borrowings (excluding cash credit facility)                 52.17 -                     (52.17)                                      -                                   -
Lease liabilities            3,307.76 276.09                (1,166.76)                            115.81                       2,532.90
Total liabilities from financing activities 3,359.93 276.09 (1,218.93) 115.81 2,532.90
*Others includes the interest accrued for lease liabilities and exchange differences.

Non-cash investing activities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Acquisition of Right-of-use assets 948.43 276.09
948.43 276.09

9 Current tax assets (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Income tax receivable (net of provision for tax) 909.36 169.62
909.36 169.62

10 Other current assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Advances to vendors 105.81 88.40
Staff advances 55.72 216.36
Prepaid expenses 696.75 609.19
Contract assets 557.74 173.07
Balance with government authorities 879.44 1,089.20

2,295.46 2,176.22
No advances are due from directors or other officers of the Group or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or advances due to firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

Non-current Current
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11 Deferred tax asset (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax asset
Provision for employee benefits 1,151.65 829.00
Provision for doubtful debts 135.33 69.55
Right to use assets/lease liabilities 118.82 162.31

106.35 -

Gross deferred tax asset 1,512.15 1,060.86

Deferred tax liability

- (11.88)
Deferred taxes acquired in business combination (refer note 41) (172.37) (310.27)
Revaluations of current investments to fair value (431.90) (147.42)

Gross deferred tax liability (604.27) (469.57)

907.88 591.29

March 31, 2024
Opening
balance

Recognised in
the statement of
profit and loss*

Exchange
difference

Closing
balance

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to :
(11.88) (117.16) 1.07 106.35

Provision for employee benefits 829.00 (320.82) 1.83 1,151.65
Provision for doubtful debts 69.55 (64.98) 0.80 135.33
Right to use assets/lease liabilities 162.31 43.63 0.14 118.82
Revaluations of current investments to fair value (147.42) 284.48 - (431.90)
Deferred taxes acquired in business combination (refer note 41) (310.27) (137.90) - (172.37)

591.29 (312.75) 3.84 907.88

March 31, 2023
Opening
balance

Recognised in
the statement of
profit and loss*

Exchange
difference

Closing
balance

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to :
(36.31) (23.43) 1.00 (11.88)

Provision for employee benefits 560.77 (255.82) 12.41 829.00
Provision for doubtful debts 88.55 20.77 1.77 69.55
Right to use assets/lease liabilities 189.20 27.57 0.68 162.31
Revaluations of current investments to fair value (221.97) (74.55) - (147.42)
Deferred taxes acquired in business combination (refer note 41) - - - (310.27)

580.24 (305.46) 15.86 591.29

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax
depreciation/amortisation charged to financial reporting

* Includes deferred tax charge of Rs. 51.71 lakhs recognised on re-measurement gains on employee defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income and deferred tax charge of
Rs. 103.42 on amortisation of  intangible assets acquired as part of the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax
depreciation/amortisation charged to financial reporting

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax
depreciation/amortisation charged to financial reporting

* Includes deferred tax charge of Rs. 3.74 lakhs recognised on re-measurement gains on employee defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax
depreciation/amortisation charged to financial reporting
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12 Equity share capital
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorized share capital
3,600.00 3,600.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
2,730.01 2,725.70

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 2,730.01 2,725.70

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

No's Amount No's Amount
At the beginning of the year 27,256,959 2,725.70 28,052,509 2,805.25
Shares issued during the year against stock options 43,125 4.31 37,500 3.75
Less: Shares bought back (Refer note : (a)(i)) - - (833,050) (83.30)
Outstanding at the end of the year 27,300,084 2,730.01 27,256,959 2,725.70

(a)(i) Buyback of shares

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder No's % holding No's % holding
P. Sapna 35.59 13.04% 35.59 13.06%
C. V. Subramanyam 27.98 10.25% 29.35 10.77%
C. Srikanth 25.00 9.16% 25.00 9.17%
Kukunuru Madhava Lakshmi 15.50 5.68% 16.00 5.87%

(d) Shares reserved for issue under options

36,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 36,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

27,300,084 (March 31, 2023: 27,256,959) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The Board, at its meeting held on May 18, 2022, approved the buyback of the Company's fully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, from the eligible
equity shareholders of the Company, other than promoters, promoter group and persons who are in control of the Company at a price not exceeding Rs. 500 per
equity share (maximum buyback price), for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs.3,800 lakhs (maximum buyback size, excluding buyback tax) from the open
market through the stock exchange mechanism, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Buyback of securities) Regulations, 2018,
subject to shareholders’ approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The shareholders approved the proposal of buyback of equity shares recommended by its
Board of Directors in the Annual General meeting held on June 19, 2022. The buyback was offered to all eligible equity shareholders of the Company (other than the
Promoters, the Promoter Group and Persons in Control of the Company) under the open market route through the stock exchange. The buyback of equity shares
through the stock exchange was completed on June 29, 2022. During this buyback period, the Company had purchased and completely extinguished a total of
8,33,050 equity shares from the stock exchange at a volume weighted average buyback price of Rs. 456.13 per equity share comprising ~1.66% of the pre buyback
paid up equity share capital of the Company. The buyback resulted in a cash outflow of Rs. 3,799.77 lakhs (excluding transaction costs and tax on buyback). The
Company funded the buyback from its free reserves including Securities Premium as explained in Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with Section
69 of the Companies Act, 2013, as at March 31, 2023, the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of Rs. 83.30 lakhs equal to the nominal value of the
above shares bought back as an appropriation from the retained earnings. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or buy back issued shares. The Company has only one class
of equity shares and has no debt. Consequent to the above capital structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts.  The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, refer note 32.
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(e) Details of shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name
No. of shares at
the beginning

of the year

Change during
the year

No. of shares at
the end of the

year
% of Total Shares % change during

the year

P. Sapna 35.59                            - 35.59 13.04%                            -
C. V. Subramanyam 29.35                       (1.37) 27.98 10.25% -4.67%
C. Srikanth 25.00                            - 25.00 9.16%                            -
C. Rajeshwari 4.39                       (3.52)                     0.87 0.32% -80.22%
P. Sudhakar 0.01                            - 0.01 0.00%                            -

As at March 31, 2023

Promoter Name
No. of shares at
the beginning

of the year

Change during
the year

No. of shares at
the end of the

year
% of Total Shares % change during

the year

P. Sapna 34.59                         1.00 35.59 13.06% 2.89%
C. V. Subramanyam 32.35                       (3.00) 29.35 10.77% -9.27%
C. Srikanth 25.00                            - 25.00 9.17%                            -
C. Rajeshwari 3.14                         1.25 4.39 1.61% 39.76%
P. Sudhakar 0.01                            - 0.01 0.00%                            -

(f) Dividends distribution made and proposed
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2023: Rs. 5.50 per share (March 31, 2022: Rs. 2.50 per share)* 1,499.96 687.70
Interim dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024: Rs. 3.00 per share (March 31, 2023: Nil)* 819.00 -

2,318.96 687.70
Proposed dividend on equity shares:
Proposed dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil per share (March 31, 2023: Rs. 5.50 per share) - 1,499.13

- 1,499.13
*Includes unclaimed dividend amount of Rs. 29.60 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 16.50 lakhs).

     13 Other equity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Securities premium
Opening balance 25,737.43                29,390.20
Add: Issue of equity shares on exercise of employee stock options 185.70 120.71
Less: Buy-back of equity shares (refer note 12(a)(i)) - (3,773.48)
Closing balance 25,923.13 25,737.43

Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance 83.30 -
Add: Transfer from retained earnings upon buyback (refer note 12(a)(i)) - 83.30
Closing balance 83.30 83.30

Share based payment reserve
Opening balance 419.69                     111.53
Less: Issue of equity shares on exercise of employee stock options (151.20) (34.46)
Add: Share-based payment expense 194.32 342.62
Closing balance 462.81 419.69

Retained earnings
Opening balance 30,021.97 14,665.54
Less: Dividend (2,318.96) (687.70)
Add: Profit during the year 16,559.20 16,832.06
Less: Tax on buyback of shares (refer note 12(a)(i)) - (865.94)
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve upon buyback (refer note 12(a)(i)) - (83.30)
Items recognised directly in other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gain on employee defined benefit plans (net of tax) 11.13 161.31

44,273.34 30,021.97
Foreign currency translation reserve
Opening balance (53.32) (988.15)
Add: Arisen during the year 387.99 934.83
Closing balance 334.67 (53.32)

               71,077.25                56,209.07

There are no equity shares issued as bonus and issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at March 31, 2023. The dividend
declared/ paid and proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of The Companies Act, 2013.
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 Nature and purpose of reserves
13.1 Security premium reserve

13.2 Share based payment reserve

13.3 Foreign currency translation reserve

13.4 Retained earnings

13.5 Capital redemption reserve

14 Borrowings
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured
Cash credit from banks (refer note (a) and (b) below) 3,493.44 3,043.67

3,493.44 3,043.67

Loan covenants

15 Trade payables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

63.82 103.63
A 63.82 103.63

Outstanding dues to related parties (refer note 34) 973.41 885.01
Outstanding dues to other parties 10,351.07 10,559.96

B 11,324.48 11,444.97
A+B 11,388.30 11,548.60

Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed outstanding dues

Micro enterprises and small enterprises
-

37.99 25.83 - - - 63.82

Others 3,700.62 2,534.59 5,077.52 9.55 - 2.20 11,324.48
3,700.62 2,572.58 5,103.35 9.55 - 2.20 11,388.30

Cigniti Technologies Limited has taken loans against security of current assets and monthly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank
are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 42)

Unbilled Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Cash credit from banks obtained by CTI contains certain debt covenants relating to tangible effective net-worth, senior debt to EBIDTA ratio, interest coverage ratio,
limitation on indebtedness, distribution of dividend and purchase of its stock.
The Group has not defaulted on any loan covenants.

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan. Refer to note 32
for further details of these plans.

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in accounting policy and
accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

Retained earnings comprises of prior year's undistributed earnings after taxes along with current year profit.

Capital redemption reserve is created for the amount equal to face value of shares bought back in the previous year.

(a) Cash credit from banks of Rs. 3,493.44 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 3,043.67 lakhs) is secured by hypothecation of trade receivables of the Group and exclusive
charge - cash collateral amounting to Rs. 1,810 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 1,700 lakhs) in the name of Company . It is repayable on demand and carries floating
interest rate of 8.50%p.a. (March 31, 2023: 8.50%p.a). The Company had available Rs. 106.56 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 556.33 lakhs) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities as at March 31, 2024.

(b) Cash credit from banks obtained by Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA ("CTI") of USD Nil (March 31, 2023: USD Nil) is secured by hypothecation of trade receivables
of the Company. It is repayable on demand and carries floating interest rate of LIBOR+2.5% p.a. on utilised amounts and carrying fixed interest rate of 0.25% p.a
(March 31, 2023: 0.25%) on un-utilised amounts. CTI had available USD 150.00 lakhs equivalent to Rs. 12,507.50 lakhs (March 31, 2023: USD 150.00 lakhs equivalent
to Rs. 12,327.55 lakhs) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities as at March 31, 2024.
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As at March 31, 2023

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed outstanding dues

Micro enterprises and small enterprises
-

82.80 20.83 - - - 103.63

Others 3,230.40 3,670.42 4,541.26 - 2.89 - 11,444.97
3,230.40 3,753.22 4,562.09 - 2.89 - 11,548.60

There are no disputed trade payables in the current and previous year.

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-120 day terms.
For explanations on the Group’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 37.

16     Lease liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities (refer note 43)                     855.79              1,391.66 1,374.24 1,141.24

                    855.79              1,391.66                  1,374.24                  1,141.24

17     Other financial liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note below) - - 7.87 20.71
Contingent consideration (refer note 41) - 520.15 154.34 646.04
Capital creditors - - 299.07 121.80
Advance from customers - - 307.49 -
Unclaimed dividend - - 29.60 16.50

                           -                   520.15                     798.37                     805.05
Interest payable is normally settled monthly throughout the financial year.

18  Provisions

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 31) 2,410.57 1,692.82 500.00 500.00
Provision for leave benefits - - 1,392.45 880.47

2,410.57 1,692.82 1,892.45 1,380.47

19  Current tax liabilities (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for taxation (net of advance tax) 1,578.21 1,915.12
1,578.21 1,915.12

20 Other current liabilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory dues 2,988.60 2,227.36
2,988.60 2,227.36

Interest payable is normally settled monthly throughout the financial year.

Non-Current Current

Non-Current Current

Unbilled Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Non-current Current
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21 Revenue from operations
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
181,501.33 164,758.08

21.1 Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Geographical regions
India 8,866.80 8,311.61
US 142,474.11 130,516.48
Rest of the world 30,160.42 25,929.99
Total revenue from contracts with customers 181,501.33 164,758.08

21.2 Contract balances
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Contract assets
Trade receivables, net (refer note 6) 31,863.65 25,515.42 22,678.05
Unbilled receivables (refer note 5) 7,403.55 9,490.76 4879.54
Contract assets (refer note 10) 557.74 173.07 59.29
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers (refer note 17) 307.49 - 3.05

21.3 Performance obligation

21.4

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

                   181,647.93                165,506.17
Adjustments :
Discounts                           146.60                       748.09

                   181,501.33                164,758.08

Revenue from Digital Assurance and Engineering (Software testing) Services

The Group has arrangements with the customer which are “time and material” basis. The performance obligation in case
of time and material contracts is satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised as and when the services are performed.

The Group also performs work under “fixed-price” arrangements. Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognized as per
the ‘percentage- of-completion’ method, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and when there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate
collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Percentage of completion is determined
based on the project costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated project costs required to complete the project.
The input method has been used to measure the progress towards completion as there is direct relationship between input
and productivity. There is no unrecognised revenue out of fixed-price arrangements.
The payment is due with in 0-90 days from the time the customer accepts the work performed by the Group.

Advance from customers: Contract liabilities represents the obligation of the Group to perform services for which the
entity has received consideration from the customer.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price

Revenue from contracts with customers

Contract assets
Unbilled receivables: Unbilled receivables are initially recognised for the revenue earned in excess of amounts billed to
clients as at the balance sheet date. Upon completion of acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as unbilled
receivables are reclassified to trade receivables. During the year ended March 31, 2024, Rs. 9,487.40 lakhs of unbilled
receivables as at March 31, 2023 has been reclassified to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.
During the year ended March 31, 2023, Rs. 4,863.89 lakhs of unbilled receivables as at March 31, 2022 has been reclassified
to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.

Contract assets: During the year ended March 31, 2024, Rs. 173.07 lakhs of contract assets as at March 31, 2023 has been
reclassified to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the year ended March 31, 2023, Rs. 59.29
lakhs of contract assets as at March 31, 2022 has been reclassified to trade receivables on completion of performance
obligation.
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22 Other income
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Exchange differences, net (153.20) 275.10
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.08 -
Income towards claim settlement (refer note 38 (c)) 838.35 -
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities 327.85 -
Liabilities no longer required written back 65.76 161.75
Reversal of provision for expected credit loss, net - 52.09

1,078.84 488.94

23 Finance income
 Year ended

March 31, 2024
 Year ended

March 31, 2023
Interest income on bank deposits 420.76 374.82
Income on fair valuation of investments through profit and loss 1,807.98 601.86
Interest income on income tax refund - 6.14

2,228.74 982.82

24 Employee benefits expense
 Year ended

March 31, 2024
 Year ended

March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus* 107,445.99 92,295.86
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 31) 971.99 907.36
Share based payment expense 194.32 342.62
Gratuity expense (refer note 31) 1,057.61 865.11
Staff welfare expenses 2,748.11 2,034.83

112,418.02 96,445.78

25 Hired contractors cost
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023

Hired contractors cost 28,611.94 30,749.57
28,611.94 30,749.57

*Salaries, wages and bonus includes an amount of Rs. 2,031.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil) towards accrual of long
service rewards for certain employees on completion of 25 years of the Company.
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26 Other expenses
 Year ended

March 31, 2024
 Year ended

March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 586.88 472.24
Rent 165.72 198.79
Rates and taxes 479.76 299.76
Insurance 318.69 195.28
Repairs and maintenance - others 29.88 40.69
Advertising, marketing and sales promotion 6,825.60 3,345.72
Office maintenance 587.11 318.94
Travelling and conveyance 3,042.43 2,780.46
Communication costs 484.69 256.95
Legal and professional fees 2,825.64 2,796.32
Payment to auditor 171.90 155.67
Provision for expected credit loss, net 346.08 -
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities - 212.18
Bad debts written off - 151.32
Software licensing cost 1,846.70 1,851.84
Printing and stationery 158.10 150.04
Recruitment expenses 241.70 431.28
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 168.58 119.01
Miscellaneous expenses 16.38 15.91

18,295.84 13,792.40

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1,398.18 1,338.41
Amortisation of other intangible assets (refer note 3) 547.91 410.93
Amortisation of right-to-use-assets (refer note 43) 1,087.24 889.01

3,033.33 2,638.35

28 Finance costs
 Year ended

March 31, 2024
 Year ended

March 31, 2023
Interest expense 149.79 125.32
Interest on lease liability (refer note 43) 162.69 177.36
Other borrowing costs 18.28 14.87
Factoring and bank charges 81.45 122.14

412.21 439.69
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29 Taxes
(a) Income tax expense:

The major components of income tax expenses are:
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Current tax 5,794.86 5,792.58
Deferred tax (316.49) (460.59)
Total income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss relating to current year 5,478.37 5,331.99

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Profit before tax (A) 22,037.57 22,164.05
Enacted tax rate in India (B) 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax expenses (C = A*B) 5,546.42 5,578.25

Reconciling items:
On account of difference in tax rates in other subsidiaries 66.34 (19.41)
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences and set off of taxable profits for the year against the carry forward of
taxable losses

(32.17) (300.94)

Tax on expenses/incomes not tax deductible/chargeable (102.22) 74.09
Total (D) 5,478.37 5,331.99
Effective tax rate 24.86% 24.06%

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing regulations under
Sections 92-92F of the Income-Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the
Company continuously updates its documents for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. The
management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial
statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense for the year and that of provision for taxation.
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30 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic earnings 16,559.20 16,832.06
Weighted average number of equity shares in computing basic EPS (No. in lakhs) 272.88 274.50
Add: Effect of dilution:

      Employee stock options (No. in lakhs) 1.23 0.50
Weighted Average number of equity shares adjusted for effect of dilution (No. in lakhs) 274.11 275.00
Face value of each equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Earnings  per share
   - Basic  (Rs.) 60.68 61.32
   - Diluted (Rs.) 60.41 61.21

31 Retirement and other employee benefits

I Defined benefit plan

A) Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee benefits expense)
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Current service cost 934.98 763.11
Interest cost 216.58 146.89
Expected return on plan assets (66.19) (44.89)
Less: Gratuity cost reimbursed by the subsidiary company for employees transferred to the Holding Company (27.76) -
Net employee benefit expenses 1,057.61 865.11
Actual return on plan asset 66.19 44.89

B) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Defined benefit obligation 3,939.39 2,992.91
Fair value of plan assets 1,028.82 800.09

2,910.57 2,192.82

C) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 2,992.91 2,500.83
Current service cost 934.98 763.11
Interest cost 216.58 146.89
Benefits paid (162.45) (195.86)
Net actuarial gain on obligation for the year recognised under OCI (14.87) (222.06)
Gratuity liability of transferee employees (27.76) -
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,939.39 2,992.91

D) Change in the fair value of plan assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening fair value of plan assets 800.09 707.57
Investment income 66.19 44.89
Employer's contribution 324.99 252.54
Benefits paid (162.45) (195.86)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense - (9.05)
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,028.82 800.09

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 500 lakhs to the gratuity fund in the next year (March 31, 2023: Rs. 500 lakhs).
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Investments with LIC 100.00% 100.00%

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan, governed by Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is
entitled to a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded through a policy with LIC. The
following tables summarise net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss, the status of funding and the amount recognised in the Balance
sheet for the gratuity plan:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

There have been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and date of authorisation of these financial
statements.
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E) Remeasurement adjustments:
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Experience (gain)/loss on plan liabilities (75.41) 25.14
Financial loss/(gain) on plan liabilities 60.54 (247.21)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense - 9.05
Remeasurement gains recognised in other comprehensive income (14.87) (213.02)

(i) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Group’s plans are shown below:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.23% 7.51%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.24% 5.95%
Salary rise 12.00% 12.00%
Attrition rate 20.00% 20.00%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the actual rate of return during the current year.

(ii) Disclosure related to indication of effect of the defined benefit plan on the entity’s future cashflows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Expected benefit payments for the year ended:
1 year 455.85 377.04
2-5 years 2,028.60 1,547.06
6-10 years 1,865.83 1,423.48
More than 10 years 2,105.28 1,626.72
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7 years (March 31, 2023: 5.21-6.43 years).

(iii) Sensitivity analysis:
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption on defined benefit obligation is as shown below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Effect of 1% change in assumed discount rate

 - 1% increase (208.35) (155.27)
 - 1% decrease 231.58 172.42

(b) Effect of 1% change in assumed salary escalation rate
 - 1% increase 199.64 150.96
 - 1% decrease (191.78) (144.34)

(c) Effect of change by 50% of attrition rate
 -  increase by 50% of the attrition rate (426.99) (305.25)
 -  decrease by 50% of the attrition rate 800.09 575.02

II Defined contribution plan
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Contribution to provident and other funds 971.99 907.36

Remeasurement gains recognised in the current year are excluding the impact of deferred tax expense of Rs. 3.74 lakhs (March 31,2023 : Rs. 51.71 lakhs).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.
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32 Share based payments

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions 194.32 342.62

Movements during the year: The following table contains movements in share options during the year: (Numbers in lakhs)

Particulars
Scheme 2014 Scheme 2015 Scheme 2014 Scheme 2015

Total No. of options under the grant 25.00 5.00 25.00 5.00
Outstanding at April 1 0.75 2.15 0.75 2.55
Exercised during the year 0.28 0.15 - 0.38
Expired during the year - - - 0.03
Outstanding at March 31 0.47 2.00 0.75 2.15
Exercisable at March 31 - 1.00 - 0.65

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was Rs 803.47 (March 31, 2023: Rs 485.10).
The following table lists the weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Scheme 2014 5.33 5.58
Scheme 2015 2.33 3.15

Particulars
 Scheme 2014  Scheme 2015

Dividend yield 0.49%-0.54% 0.49%
Expected volatility 42.98% - 47.40% 43.33% - 49.12%
Risk-free interest rate 4.31% - 6.20% 4.77% - 6.05%
Expected life of options granted in years 2 - 5 years 2 - 5 years
Weighted average share price 494.26 505.90
Model used

33 Segment reporting

Geographical information
a) Revenue  Year ended

March 31, 2024
 Year ended

March 31, 2023
India                 8,866.80                      8,311.61
US             142,474.11                  130,516.48

Rest of the world               30,160.42                    25,929.99

b) Assets: All the significant non-current assets are located in India.

c) No single customer revenue is more than 10% of the group's revenue.

The expected life of the stock is based on the historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise pattern that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

The Group has only one reportable business segment, which is rendering of Revenue from Digital Assurance and Engineering (Software testing) Services.
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the consolidated financial statements relate to the Group’s single business segment.

The range of exercise prices for the options outstanding at the beginning, forfeited, exercised, expired and outstanding at the end of the year is Rs 10 - Rs 506
(March 31, 2023: Rs 240 - Rs 506).
There are no grants during the current year and previous year. The following tables list the inputs to the model used for the year ended March 31, 2022:

 March 31, 2022

Black-Scholes model

Under the Employee Stock Option Plan, the Group, at its discretion, may grant share options to employees of the Group. The remuneration committee of the board
evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and approves the grant of options. These options vest with employees over a specified period ranging
from 1 to 5 years subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Company’s shares at a price equal
to the face value. The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant using a Black- Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. It takes into account historical and expected dividends, and the share price fluctuation covariance of the Company and
its competitors to predict the distribution of relative share performance.

 March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
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34 Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and description of relationship
Name of the related party Relationship
Primentor Inc.

Key Management Personnel
Mr. C. V. Subramanyam Director (Chairman & Managing director upto November 3, 2023)
Mr. C. Srikanth Director & Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f  January 20, 2024)
Mr. Krishnan Venkatachary Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Naga Vasudha Company Secretary
Mr. Phaneesh Murthy Independent director
Mr. Ram Krishna Agarwal Independent director
Mr. Srinath Batni Independent director
Ms. Nooraine Fazal Independent director
Mr. K CH Subbarao Non-Executive Director (upto June 16, 2023)*
Mr. Sudhakar Pennam Non-executive Director (w.e.f March 07, 2024)

Transactions/balances with the above parties
March 31, 2024

Primentor Inc. Mr. C. V.
Subramanyam

Mr. C. Srikanth Mr. Krishnan
Venkatachary

Ms. Naga Vasudha Mr. Ram Krishna
Agarwal

Ms. Nooraine Fazal Mr. Srinath Batni Mr. Sudhakar
Pennam

Transactions during the year
Professional fees 273.20 - - - - - - - -
Remuneration - 200.33 656.94 923.71 35.88 43.26 43.26 43.26 -
Gratuity paid - 20.00 - - - - - - -
Director sitting fees - 6.00 - - - 26.00 24.00 24.00 2.00
Reimbursement of expenses 35.49 - 2.10 - - - - - -

Balances receivable/(payable):
Remuneration payable - (79.24) (28.42) (711.57) (1.50) (43.26) (43.26) (43.26) -
Trade payables (22.91) - - - - - - - -

March 31, 2023
Primentor Inc. Mr. C. V.

Subramanyam
Mr. C. Srikanth Mr. Krishnan

Venkatachary
Ms. Naga Vasudha Mr. Ram Krishna

Agarwal
Ms. Nooraine Fazal Mr. Srinath Batni

Transactions during the year
Professional fees 265.10 - - - - - - -
Remuneration - 725.00 582.43 174.09 28.04 48.00 48.00 48.00
Director sitting fees - - - - - 24.00 17.00 18.00
Reimbursement of expenses 41.82 - 11.31 - - - - -

Balances receivable/(payable):
Remuneration payable - (465.00) (242.09) (10.15) (1.17) (48.00) (48.00) (48.00)
Trade payables (22.60) - - - - - - -

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel exercise
significant influence.

As the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whole, the amount pertaining to the Key Management personnel and their relatives is not ascertainable and, therefore, not included above.

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in
which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

*Mr. K CH Subbarao was the director of the Group until June 16, 2023. Accordingly, any transactions of the Company with Mr. K CH Subbarao and the entities (where he is a director/member) have not been disclosed as related party transactions
for the period after June 16, 2023.

In the previous year, the key management personnel (Mr. C.V Subramanyam) has given personal guarantees to bankers in connection with cash credit facility whose closing balance on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 3,043.67 lakhs. There is no personal
guarantee for the current year ended March 31, 2024.
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35 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements

Within 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Extension Options expected not to be exercised 3,580.98 - 3,580.98

Estimates and assumptions

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

(iii) Defined employee benefit plans (Gratuity)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to
goodwill. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in note 3.1.

(ii) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies (refer note 29).

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 31.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

The preparation of the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
• Capital management Note 39
• Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 37
• Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 31 and 37.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options – Group as lessee
The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to
renew the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term:
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(iv) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

36 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Investments                         24,989.35                 17,728.30                   24,989.35                   17,728.30
Trade receivables                         31,863.65                 25,515.42                   31,863.65                   25,515.42
Cash and cash equivalents                         10,396.45                   4,378.79                   10,396.45                     4,378.79
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents                           5,650.11                   6,295.70                     5,650.11                     6,295.70
Other financial assets                         11,446.49                 14,218.70                   11,446.49                   14,218.70

Financial liabilities
Borrowings                           3,493.44                   3,043.67                     3,493.44                     3,043.67
Trade payables                         11,388.30                 11,548.60                   11,388.30                   11,548.60
Lease liabilities                           2,230.03                   2,532.90                     2,230.03                     2,532.90
Other financial liabilities                              798.37                   1,325.20                        798.37                     1,325.20

Fair value hierarchy
Valuation technique and key Inputs

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Equity instruments of other entities (unquoted)

Investment in Simnovus Corporation                      83.38                              -                                  -                            83.38
Investment in Loquat Inc.                    166.77                              -                                  -                          166.77

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in other entities (Unquoted)

                     25.00                              -                                  -                            25.00

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in bonds, quoted               10,130.75                 10,130.75                                -                                  -
Investment in debentures, quoted                 8,569.89                   8,569.89                                -                                  -
Investment in mutual funds, quoted                 3,884.67                   3,884.67                                -                                  -
Investment in commercial papers, quoted                 2,128.89                   2,128.89                                -                                  -

Liabilities
Contingent consideration                    154.34                              -                                  -                          154.34

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Fair value measurement at the end of the year using

Investment in compulsory convertible preference shares of Hirexai Private Limited

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do
not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

(v) Allowance for credit losses on receivables and unbilled revenue
The Group determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic conditions. The Group considered current
and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the Group deals with and the countries where it operates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Group has also considered
credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate the probability of default in future.

Carrying value Fair value

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further, the management has assessed that fair value of borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts largely since they are carried at floating rate of interest.
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Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments as at March 31, 2023:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Equity instruments of other entities (unquoted)

Investment in Lambda Testing Inc.                      82.19                              -                                  -                            82.19
Investment in Simnovus Corporation                      82.19                              -                                  -                            82.19

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in bonds, quoted                 8,155.41                   8,155.41                                -                                  -
Investment in debentures, quoted                 4,122.28                   4,122.28                                -                                  -
Investment in mutual funds, quoted                 5,286.23                   5,286.23                                -                                  -

Liabilities
Contingent consideration                 1,166.19                              -                                  -                       1,166.19
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current and previous years.

The following table represents changes in level 3 items for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
Particulars Investment in

unquoted equity
and preferred
instruments

As at April 01, 2023                        164.38
Purchases                        191.77

                               -
Exchange difference                             1.19
Sales                         (82.19)
As at March 31, 2024                        275.15

As at April 01, 2022                                -
Purchases                        164.38

                               -
Sales                                -
As at March 31, 2023                        164.38

37 Financial risk management objectives and policies

A

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of investments classified as FVTOCI assets (level 3) :

Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations. The
Group’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Group results in material concentration of credit risk, except for trade receivables.

The Group considers a counterparty whose payment is due more than 90 days after the due date as a defaulted party. This is based on considering the market and economic forces in which
the entities in the Group are operating. The Group creates provision for the amount if the credit risk of counter-party increases significantly due to its poor financial position and failure to
make payment beyond a period of 90 days from the due date. In calculating expected credit loss, the Group has also considered historical pattern of credit loss, the likelihood of increased
credit risk.

Fair value measurement at the end of the year using
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B Liquidity Risk

March 31, 2024: On demand Up to 1 Year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Contractual undiscounted payments
Borrowings                 3,493.44                                        - - -                     3,493.44
Trade payables -                         11,388.30 - -                   11,388.30
Lease liabilities -                           1,470.44 904.47 -                     2,374.91
Other financial liabilities -                              798.37 - -                        798.37

3,493.44                         13,657.11                      904.47                                  -                   18,055.02

March 31, 2023: On demand Up to 1 Year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Contractual undiscounted payments
Borrowings                 3,043.67                                        - - -                     3,043.67
Trade payables -                         11,548.60 - -                   11,548.60
Lease liabilities -                           1,256.09 1,451.13 -                     2,707.22
Other financial liabilities -                              843.01                      684.00 -                     1,527.01

                3,043.67                         13,647.70                   2,135.13                                  -                   18,826.50

C

C1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
March 31, 2024

Indian Rupees 0.50% -0.50% 7.28 (7.28)
March 31, 2023

Indian Rupees 0.50% -0.50% 8.53 (8.53)
The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other market changes. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign
currencies are all constant.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at March
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's working capital obligations with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as follows:

The customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed on
periodic basis. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group's receivables turnover is quick and historically, there were no significant defaults. Ind AS requires an
entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109. The Group assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets are impaired. Expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The Group has
used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Change in basis points Effect on profit before tax

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are
available for use as per requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by availing appropriate borrowing facilities from banks as and when required,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at March 31, 2024, the Company had 24 customers (March 31, 2023: 23 customers) that owed the Company more than 1% each of total receivable and accounted for approximately 61%
(March 31, 2023: 55%) of all the receivables outstanding. There are 4 customers (March 31, 2023: 1) with balance greater than 5% of total receivable and accounted for approximately 26%
(March 31, 2023: 7% ) of all the receivables outstanding.

The Group has adequate provision as at March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs. 713.61 lakhs (As at March 31, 2023: Rs. 364.49 lakhs) for receivables.

Trade receivables as contract asset:
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C2. Foreign currency risk

Unhedged foreign currency exposure:

Currency Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%
USD 61.96                            (61.96)
EUR 10.51                            (10.51)
ZAR 5.36                              (5.36)
AED 31.63                            (31.63)
SGD 3.58                              (3.58)
CAD 19.31                            (19.31)
AUD 1.17                              (1.17)
NZD 0.06                              (0.06)

Currency Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%
USD 21.78                            (21.78)
EUR 6.33                              (6.33)
ZAR 1.48                              (1.48)
AED 12.10                            (12.10)
SGD 1.83                              (1.83)
CAD 0.83                              (0.83)
AUD 0.06                              (0.06)
NZD 0.04                              (0.04)

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency).
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and equity, where any
transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the respective entities.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the volatility of the Group’s net financial assets (which includes cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, other financial liabilities), which are denominated in various foreign currencies (viz.
USD,EUR, AED, SGD, CAD, AUD, NZD, ZAR etc.).

For the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 , every 1% increase /(decrease) of the respective foreign currencies compared to functional currency of the
Group would impact profit before tax and equity before tax as follows for the respective currencies:

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023
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38 Commitments, contingencies and other litigations

a. Commitments

b. Contingent liabilities
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

c. Other litigations

In the earlier years, the Company had received a show cause notice from the Department of Foreign Trade (DGFT) dated August 25, 2020 and from the Directorate of
Revenue Intelligence (DRI), Ahmedabad dated December 28, 2020, stating that the services provided by the Company are not covered under technical testing and
analysis services and it appears that the Company provides services through subsidiaries in the foreign countries and accordingly the services rendered by the
Company fall under the definition of service rendered through commercial presence in a foreign country which is not eligible for Service Exports from India Scheme
(SEIS) benefits. The notice calls upon the Company to show cause as to why (a) The Scrips granted amounting to Rs 659.93 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2017,
should not be cancelled/ recovered from the Company and (b) The penalty should not be imposed as per Customs Act, 1962.

The Company had filed responses against the aforesaid show cause notices as per the legal opinion. Based on their internal assessment and legal opinion, Management
believes that the software testing services being provided by the Company are eligible under the SEIS and will be able to establish the services will not fall in the
category of “Supply of services through commercial presence”. In view of the above, the Management believes that the export incentive recognised for the period April
1, 2015 to March 31, 2020 amounting to Rs. 1,770.78 lakhs are fully recoverable (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,770.78 lakhs).

(a) In the earlier years, the Company had received a letter from Office of the Joint Director, Enforcement Directorate, Hyderabad, initiating enquiry under the
provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) requesting for certain documents. The Joint Director had called for an in person hearing where the
Company had submitted the necessary information. Subsequently, the Company has received a show cause notice dated September 4, 2023, from ED to show cause as
to why the inquiry should not be held and penalty should not be imposed against the Company for the certain contraventions relating to issue of shares to a resident
entity against money received from an overseas entity and other procedural delays in filing documents. The Company has submitted responses and has made
application to RBI for compounding of delays.

(b) In the earlier years, the Company had made foreign investments aggregating to USD 1,002.00 (equivalent) towards equity capital of three foreign subsidiaries
without obtaining overseas direct investment (ODI) certificate from RBI. The Company is in the process of obtaining ODI approval from RBI and is in the process of
compounding FEMA related non compliances.

(c) The Company has incorporated subsidiary i.e. Cigniti Technologies CR Limitada in Costa Rica, US, in the previous year and Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd in
Singapore and Cigniti Technologies (CZ) Limited s.r.o, in Czech Republic in the earlier years. Investments with respect to share capital subscriptions of such entities is
in progress as at balance sheet date as the Company is in the process of making the required filings with Reserve Bank of India.

Management is in the process of addressing the above matters and in view of the administrative/procedural nature of these non-compliances, believes that they will
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In the earlier years, Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA (Cigniti USA), subsidiary of the Company had filed a lawsuit against it's former employees and an entity related to
such employees, for inter alia misappropriation of trade secrets and various breaches of contract and fiduciary duty. Subsequent to the year end, Cigniti USA has
entered into a settlement agreement with its former employees and an entity related to such employees, to settle the dispute and withdraw the litigation, for an amount
of USD 4.01 million equivalent to ~Rs.3,330.30 lakhs. Further, the subsidiary company has received USD 1.01 million as part of the settlement agreement and the same
has been recognised under other income for the year ended March 31,2024.

Management based on internal assessment and its documentation relating to the international transactions, believes that the Company has a strong basis to support its
position and that the likelihood of any liability devolving on the Company on account of transfer pricing adjustment is remote. The Company has adequate provision
in the books for the potential liability, if any, which may arise out of other adjustments.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is Rs. 35.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Nil).

(a) In the earlier years, the Company had received a draft Transfer Pricing (TP) assessment order for A.Y. 2017-2018 under section 92CA(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961
proposing an adjustment of Rs. 6,285.52 lakhs involving tax implication of approximately Rs. 2078.18 lakhs, excluding interest and penalty. The adjustments majorly
pertains to transfer pricing margin adjustment and interest on loans and advances to subsidiaries. Subsequently, the Company had received the final order with the
proposed adjustment as mentioned in the draft order. Management had filed an appeal with the tax authorities and is currently pending with Commissioner (Appeals)
/Dispute Resolution Panel (DRP).

(b) In the earlier years, the Company had received an assessment order for A.Y. 2018-2019 under section 143(3) read with section 144C(13) of Income Tax Act, 1961
proposing an adjustment of Rs. 596.53 lakhs involving tax implication of approximately Rs. 268.56 lakhs, excluding interest and penalty. The adjustments majorly
pertains to interest on delayed trade receivables and interest on loans and advances to subsidiaries. Management has filed an appeal with the tax authorities and is
currently pending with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT).
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39 Capital management

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings                        3,493.44                        3,043.67
Less:   Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 7)                     (10,396.45)                       (4,378.79)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8)                       (5,650.11)                       (6,295.70)
Current investments (refer note 4(b))                     (24,714.20)                     (17,563.92)

Net debt*                                   -                                   -

Equity                        2,730.01                        2,725.70
Other equity                      71,077.25                      56,209.07
Total capital                      73,807.26                      58,934.77
Capital and net debt                      73,807.26                      58,934.77

Gearing ratio (Net debt/ Capital and net debt) 0% 0%

* Since the Company has cash surplus, the net debt for the purpose of computation of gearing ratio is taken as zero.

The Group manages its capital structure in consideration to the changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Group monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less
cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at an optimal level to ensure that the debt related covenants are complied with.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current and previous year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
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40. Statutory group information

Name of the entity in the Group

As a % of
consolidated net

assets

Amount in lakhs As a % of consolidated
profit/(loss)

Amount in lakhs As a % of consolidated
other comprehensive

income

Amount in lakhs As a % of total
comprehensive

income

Amount in lakhs

Parent – Cigniti Technologies Limited 67.19%                  51,078.67 56.04% 9,479.02 100.00% 11.13 56.06% 9,490.15
Subsidiaries – Indian
Gallop Solutions Private Limited 0.08%                         57.09 0.00% (0.26) - - 0.00% (0.26)
Aparaa Digital Private Limited 0.06%                         46.46 -0.42% (71.05) - - -0.42% (71.05)
Subsidiaries – Foreign
Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA 30.34%                  23,066.21 38.12% 6,448.06 -                                 - 38.10% 6,448.06
Cigniti Technologies (UK) Limited, UK 2.17%                    1,649.04 3.99% 674.86 -                                 - 3.99% 674.86
Cigniti Technologies (Australia) Pty Ltd, Australia -0.69%                      (525.20) 1.09% 183.82 -                                 - 1.09% 183.82
Cigniti Technologies (Canada) Inc., Canada 1.82%                    1,386.52 2.29% 388.08 -                                 - 2.29% 388.08
Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd, Singapore -0.17%                      (127.85) -0.03% (4.28) -                                 - -0.03% (4.28)
Cigniti Technologies (CZ) Limited s.r.o, Czech Republic -0.69%                      (527.72) -0.61% (102.71) -                                 - -0.61% (102.71)
Cigniti Technologies CR Limitada , Costa Rica -0.11%                        (82.70) -0.47% (79.22) -                                 - -0.47% (79.22)
RoundSqr Pty Ltd, Australia                                    -                                 -                                            - - -                                 -                                    - -
Gross amounts 100.00% 76,020.52 100.00% 16,916.32 100.00% 11.13 100.00% 16,927.45
Adjustments arising out of consolidation (2,213.26) (357.12) 387.99 - 30.87
Net amounts 73,807.26 16,559.20 399.12 16,958.32

March 31, 2024
Net assets, i.e., total assets minus total

liabilities
Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive income Share in total comprehensive income
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Name of the entity in the Group

As a % of
consolidated net

assets

Amount in lakhs As a % of consolidated
profit/(loss)

Amount in lakhs As a % of consolidated
other comprehensive

income

Amount in lakhs As a % of total
comprehensive

income

Amount in lakhs

Parent – Cigniti Technologies Limited 71.86%                  43,674.35 59.35% 10,172.36 95.27% 153.68 59.69% 10,326.04
Subsidiaries – Indian
Gallop Solutions Private Limited 0.10%                         58.35 0.00% (0.19) - - 0.00% (0.19)
Aparaa Digital Private Limited 0.16%                         98.74 -0.33% (56.66) 4.73% 7.63 -0.28% (49.03)
Subsidiaries – Foreign
Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA 26.88%                  16,334.06 35.54% 6,091.23 -                                 - 35.19% 6,091.23
Cigniti Technologies (UK) Limited, UK 1.53%                       932.65 3.46% 592.84 -                                 - 3.43% 592.84
Cigniti Technologies (Australia) Pty Ltd, Australia -1.18%                      (717.91) 1.20% 206.28 -                                 - 1.19% 206.28
Cigniti Technologies (Canada) Inc., Canada 1.62%                       982.84 2.09% 357.71 -                                 - 2.07% 357.71
Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd, Singapore -0.20%                      (123.60) -0.17% (28.50) -                                 - -0.16% (28.50)
Cigniti Technologies (CZ) Limited s.r.o, Czech Republic -0.77%                      (466.35) -1.57% (269.71) -                                 - -1.56% (269.71)
Cigniti Technologies CR Limitada , Costa Rica -                                 - - - -                                 - - -
RoundSqr Inc., USA (dissolved w.e.f January 30, 2023) 0.00%                                 - 0.39% 66.72 -                                 - 0.39% 66.72
RoundSqr Pty Ltd, Australia 0.00%                           0.10 0.04% 7.47 -                                 - 0.04% 7.47
Gross amounts 100.00% 60,773.23 100.00% 17,139.55 100.00% 161.31 100.00% 17,300.86
Adjustments arising out of consolidation (1,838.46) (307.49) 934.83 - 627.34
Net amounts 58,934.77 16,832.06 1,096.14 17,928.20

Net assets, i.e., total assets minus total
liabilities

Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive income Share in total comprehensive income
March 31, 2023
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41. Business combination

Aparaa Digital Private Limited

Opening balance as at April 01, 2022                                             -
Liability arising on business combination                                     954.01
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities                                     212.18
Consideration paid in the current year                                             -
Closing balance as at March 31, 2023                                  1,166.19
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities                                   (327.85)
Consideration paid in the current year                                   (684.00)
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024                                     154.34

Components Purchase price allocated
Other intangible assets

Customer relationship 879.74
Non-compete fee 763.98

Net assets*
Non-current assets 18.20
Current assets 489.27
Current liabilities (414.10)

Total 1,737.09
Goodwill 1,910.61
Less: Deferred tax liability # (413.69)
Total purchase consideration 3,234.01
*Includes cash and cash equivalents acquired of Rs. 165.72 lakhs.

The other intangible assets are amortised over a period of three years as per management’s estimate of its useful life, over which economic benefits are
expected to be realised. The fair value and gross contractual amount for trade receivables acquired is Rs. 248.85 lakhs and is expected to be collectable. The
goodwill amounting to Rs. 1,910.61 lakhs is attributable to the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition, a customer list, which is not
separately recognised, workforce and profitability of the acquired business. Due to the contractual terms imposed on acquisition, the customer list is not
separable. Therefore, it does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset under Ind AS 38. Goodwill arising on the acquisition is not
deductible for tax purposes.

During the current year, the Company has paid the first earnout of Rs. 684 lakhs upon satisfaction of the targets mentioned in the SPA.

Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated July 1, 2022, the Company had acquired 100% of the issued capital of Aparaa Digital Private
Limited ("Aparaa"), for an upfront consideration of Rs. 2,280.00 lakhs and earn out payments based of future performance over the next two years. The
Company acquired Aparaa with a strategy to expand digital engineering capacity to provide a greater breadth and depth of services to its clients.

Consequent to the acquisition, Aparaa along with its subsidiaries became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company with effect from July 1, 2022 upon
satisfactory completion of closing conditions under the SPA and had been consolidated with effect from that date. The transaction was accounted in
accordance with Ind AS 103 - Business Combination. The group had recognised Rs. 1,323.40 lakhs towards fair value of net assets acquired and Rs. 1,910.61
lakhs towards Goodwill.

The fair value of the purchase consideration of Rs. 3,234.01 lakhs comprise of an upfront consideration of Rs. 2,280.00 lakhs and contingent consideration of
Rs. 954.01 lakhs payable subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions. The fair value of the contingent consideration, recognised on the acquisition date is
determined by discounting the estimated amount payable to the previous owners on achievement of certain financial targets applying the discounted cash
flow approach. The key inputs used for the estimation of fair values are discount rate of 26.16% and probabilities of achievement of financial targets. The
fair value of net assets acquired on the acquisition date amounted to Rs. 1,737.09 lakhs. The excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net
assets acquired has been attributed towards goodwill.

A reconciliation of fair value measurement of the contingent consideration liability is provided below:

# The deferred tax liability has arisen on the other intangible assets identified as part of the acquisition. Deferred tax liability as at March 31, 2024 is Rs.
172.37 (March 31, 2023 Rs. 310.27) and Rs. 137.90 (March 31, 2023 Rs. 103.42) of deferred tax was reversed during the current year.
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42. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 63.82 103.63
Interest due on above - -

63.82 103.63
- -

- -

- -
- -

43. Leases
Group as lessee

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance                        1,876.15                          2,550.62
Additions                           948.43                             276.09
Exchange differences                               7.07                             (61.55)
Amortization                      (1,087.24)                           (889.01)
Closing balance                        1,744.41                          1,876.15

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance                        2,532.90                          3,307.76
Additions                           948.43                             276.09
Accretion of interest                           162.69                             177.36
Exchange differences                               7.07                             (61.55)
Payments                      (1,421.06)                        (1,166.76)
Closing balance                        2,230.03                          2,532.90
Current                        1,374.24                          1,141.24
Non-current                           855.79                          1,391.66

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 37.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 5%-8.5% , with maturity between 2024-2028.

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023
Amortization of right to use asset                        1,087.24                             889.01
Interest on lease liabilities                           162.69                             177.36
Expense relating to short term and low value leases (refer note 26)                           165.72                             198.79

                       1,415.65                          1,265.16

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006.

The Group has entered into lease of its office premises with no restrictions and are renewable at the option of either of the parties for a period of 11 months to 5 years. The
escalation rates range from 0% to 10% per annum as per the terms of the lease agreement. There are no sub-leases. The Group also has certain leases spaces including
guest houses with lease terms of 12 months or less and with low value. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for
these leases.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 1,421.06 lakhs in the current year (March 31,2023: Rs. 1,166.76 lakhs). The entire amount is in the nature of fixed lease
payments. The Group has Rs. 948.43 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 276.09 lakhs) of non-cash additions to right-of-use assets.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the
leased-asset portfolio and align with the Group’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension option is
reasonably certain to be exercised (refer note 35).
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1. Corporate information
Cigniti Technologies Limited (“the Company”) (CIN: L72200TG1998PLC030081) is a public company
domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. Its shares are listed
on two recognised stock exchanges in India. The registered office of the Company is located at
Dwarakapuri Colony, Panjagutta, Hyderabad. The Company is principally engaged in providing Digital
Assurance and Engineering (Software testing) Services across the world.

The Standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 1, 2024.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

 Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

 Contingent consideration

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the Standalone Financial Statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

(b)Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

(c) Foreign currencies
The Company’s Standalone Financial Statements are presented in INR, which is the functional currency
of the Company.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or statement of profit
or loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

(d)Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Standalone Financial Statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

(e) Revenue from contracts with customer
The Company derives revenue primarily from Digital Assurance and Engineering (Software testing)
Services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those services. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing
latitude and is also exposed to credit risks. Revenue is net of volume discounts/price incentives which
are estimated and accounted for based on the terms of contract.

Rendering of services
Revenue from Digital Assurance and Engineering (Software testing) Services rendered to its subsidiary
companies is recognised on accrual basis for services rendered and billed as per the terms of specific
contract.
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The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of services rendered to others as
mentioned below:

 Time and material: Revenue from time and material contracts are recognised as the related services
are performed, which is pursued based on the efforts spent and agreed rate with the customer.
Revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue.

 Fixed price contracts: Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised as per the ‘percentage- of-
completion’ method, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and when there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is uncertainty as to
measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved. Percentage of completion is determined based on the project costs incurred to date as a
percentage of total estimated project costs required to complete the project. The input method has
been used to measure the progress towards completion as there is direct relationship between input
and productivity.

Contract balances:
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as unbilled revenue (contract assets).

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other income
 Income from Government incentive:

Income from Services Exports from India Scheme ('SEIS') incentives under Government's Foreign Trade
Policy 2015-20 is recognised on expected realisable value based on effective rate of incentive under the
scheme, provided no significant uncertainty exists for the measurability, realisation and utilisation of
the credit under the scheme. The receivables related to SEIS scrips are classified as 'Other financial
assets' as "Export incentive receivable"

 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and rate applicable in the transaction.

• Earnings and losses from investments is recognised based on changes in fair value of investments
during the year and are reported on net basis.

 Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on net basis.
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(f) Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in OCI or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provision where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

 When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

 In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

 When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

 In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in OCI or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except:

 When the tax incurred on purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable

 When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

(g) Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Property, plant and equipment under installation or under construction as at balance sheet are shown as
capital work-in-progress, and the related advances are shown as loans and advances.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The management has made technical
assessment of the useful lives of the following classes of assets which coincides with the lives prescribed
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset Useful lives estimated
by the management (years)

Buildings 60
Electrical equipment 10
Leasehold improvements Over the period of lease
Furniture and fixtures 10
Office equipments 5
Computer and computer equipments 3
Vehicles 8
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(h)Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:
Intangible assets Useful lives
Software licenses 3 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

(i) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets, as follows:

ROU Useful lives
Office premises 3-5 years
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If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii)Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
/and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash-Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or Company of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for the Company’s CGU. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
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future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. After impairment, amortisation is provided on
the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(k)Provisions, contingent liabilities and commitments
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
 A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will

not be required to settle the obligation
 A present obligation arising from past events, when it cannot be measured reliably.
 A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion
of assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

(l) Retirement and other employee benefits
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance is a defined contribution
schemes. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the fund. The Company
recognizes contribution payable to these schemes as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due
for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that
the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made
to a separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
 The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
 The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:
 Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and
 Net interest expense or income

Short term employee benefits
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

However, the Company presents the entire provision towards accumulated leave as a current liability in
the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months
after the reporting date.

(m) Hired contractors cost
Hired contractors cost represents cost of technical sub-contractors for service delivery to the Company’s
customers. These costs are accrued based on services received from the sub-contractors in line with the
terms of the contract.

(n) Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-
settled transactions).
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Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Share-Based Payment (SBP) reserves
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and
loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an
award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

(o) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in
section Revenue from contracts with customers.
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For a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
 Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
 Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses

upon derecognition (equity instruments)
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of

Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except
when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not
subject to impairment assessment.

The Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and

i. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
ii. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt

securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
 Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
 Other financial assets

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

 All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life
of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument

 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms

As a practical expedient, the Company evaluates individual balances to determine impairment loss
allowance on its trade receivables. The evaluation is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as expense/ income
in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement
of profit and loss. Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet.
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. For assessing increase in credit risk and
impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, contingent consideration and loans
and borrowings including bank overdrafts and cash credits.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Contingent consideration)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.
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Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there
is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected
to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a
result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes
are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins
or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of
the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of standalone cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part of the Company’s cash management.

(q) Segment information
The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is rendering of Digital Assurance and
Engineering (Software testing) Services. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements
relate to the Company’s single business segment.

(r) Dividend
The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to its equity holders when the distribution is
authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws



Cigniti Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1998PLC030081
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount
is recognised directly in equity.

(s) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares
are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to its equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.3   New and amended standards.

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has not early adopted any other
standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on
the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to
Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such
as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these
amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities
and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as
per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was
also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at April 01, 2022.

2.4 Standards notified but not yet effective.
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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3. Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Buildings Electrical
equipments

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and
fixtures

Office
equipments

Computer and
computer

equipment

Vehicles Total property,
plant and

equipment

Software
license

Total other
intangible assets

Cost
As at April 1, 2022 193.53 536.43 317.10 331.95 352.33 3,090.91 176.10 4,998.35 246.66 246.66
Additions                            -                      1.84                     98.61                      2.53                     14.62                   816.63                          -                     934.23                                  -                              -
As at March 31, 2023                   193.53                   538.27                   415.71                   334.48                   366.95                3,907.54                   176.10                5,932.58                         246.66                    246.66
Additions                            -                   186.78                   113.82                     15.12                   129.41                   265.27                          -                   710.40                                  -                              -
Disposals                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                 (176.10)                 (176.10)                                  -                              -
As at March 31, 2024                   193.53                   725.05                   529.53                   349.60                   496.36                4,172.81                          -                  6,466.88                         246.66                    246.66

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
As at April 1, 2022                     25.13                   236.86                   177.94                   164.71                   272.38                1,081.04                     54.34                2,012.40                         246.66                    246.66
Charge for the year                      4.27                     55.27                     21.50                     26.06                     53.60                   992.30                     21.72                1,174.72                                -                            -
As at March 31, 2023                     29.40                   292.13                   199.44                   190.77                   325.98                2,073.34                     76.06                3,187.12                         246.66                    246.66
Charge for the year                      4.26                     54.30                     39.25                     26.33                     40.63                1,041.78                     21.77                1,228.32                                -                            -
Disposals                          -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                   (97.83)                   (97.83)                                -                            -
As at March 31, 2024                     33.66                   346.43                   238.69                   217.10                   366.61                3,115.12                          -                  4,317.61                         246.66                    246.66

Net book value
As at March 31, 2023                   164.13                   246.14                   216.27                   143.71                     40.97                1,834.20                   100.04                2,745.46                                -                            -
As at March 31, 2024                   159.87                   378.62                   290.84                   132.50                   129.75                1,057.69                          -                2,149.27                                -                            -

Property, plant and equipment Other intangible assets
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Financial assets
There are no loans or deposits given, covered under section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013.

4 Investments
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade investments (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Investment in equity instruments
Investment in subsidiaries (Unquoted)

5549.49 5549.49

110.00 110.00
0.00 0.00

839.57 839.57
442.25 442.25

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.17 0.17

3234.01 3,234.01
0.02 0.02

(0.00) (0.00)
(52.91) -

Preferred instruments of other entities (Unquoted)
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
100 (March 31, 2023: Nil) compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 fully paid-up in Hirexai Private Limited 25.00 -

Total 10,147.60 10,175.51
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 10,147.60 10,175.51
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments (52.91) (0.00)

Notes:

* Investments value rounded off in lakhs.

5 Current investments
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Valued at fair value through profit and loss

Investment in bonds, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 10,130.75 8,155.41
Investment in debentures, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 8,569.89 4,122.28
Investment in commercial paper, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 2,128.89 -
Investment in mutual funds, quoted
Unsecured, considered good 3,884.67 5,286.23

24,714.20 17,563.92
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 24,714.20 17,563.92
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 24,714.20 17,563.92
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

(d) 855,001 (March 31, 2023 : 855,001) equity shares of GBP 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies (UK) Limited, UK
(e) 865,001 (March 31, 2023: 865,001) equity shares of AUD 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies (Australia) Pty Ltd., Australia
(f) 1 (March 31, 2023: 1) equity shares of NZD 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies (NZ) Limited, New Zealand
     (refer note 41 (b) (iii b))*

(c) 1 (March 31, 2023 : 1) equity shares of CAD 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technology Canada Inc., Canada
     (refer note 41 (b) (iii b))*

(a) 1,000 (March 31, 2023 : 1,000) equity shares of $ 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA
      (refer note 41 (b) (iii b))
(b) 10,000 (March 31, 2023 : 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up in Gallop Solutions Private Limited, India

(g) 1 (March 31, 2023 : 1) equity shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd, Singapore
     (refer note 41 (b) (iii c))*
(h) 5,000 (March 31, 2023 : 5000) equity shares of CZK 1 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies (CZ) Limited, Czech Republic
      (refer note 41 (b) (iii c))

a) Cigniti Technologies (NZ) Limited, New Zealand, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was wound up effective January 30, 2019. The Company has made provision for the
investment in the subsidiary in earlier years.

c) Investment impairment testing: The carrying amount of the investment is tested annually for impairment using discounted cash-flow models of subsidiary’s recoverable value compared to
the carrying value and comparable multiple method. A deficit between the recoverable value and the carrying value of investment would result in impairment. The inputs to the impairment
testing model which have the most significant impact on recoverable value include:
- Projected revenue growth, operating margins and operating cash-flows in the years 1-5;
- Stable long-term growth rates beyond five years and in perpetuity; and
- Discount rates that represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to the subsidiary, taking into consideration the time value of money.

The impairment test model includes sensitivity testing of key assumptions, including revenue growth, operating margin and discount rate.
Based on the approved business plan and valuation assessment, the management of the Company expects growth in operations and sustained profitability. The projections of the business is
above the book value of its investments except for those in (a) & (b) above, indicating no signs of impairment. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustment relating
to impairment of investments.

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment in Cigniti Technologies (NZ) Limited, New Zealand* (refer note a)

(i) 44,248 (March 31, 2023 : 44,248) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up in Aparaa Digital Private Limited, India
(j) 120 (March 31, 2023 : 120) equity shares of  CRC 100 each, fully paid-up in Cigniti Technologies CR Limitada, Costa Rica
(refer note 41 (b) (iii c))

         Provision for diminution in value of investment in Gallop Solutions Private Limited, India (refer note b)

b) Gallop Solutions Private Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of the Company based on networth of the subsidiary has made provision for diminution in value of investments amounting to
Rs. 52.91 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil).
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Units Amount Units Amount
Bonds
Bharat Bond ETF 80,000.00 1,082.06 80,000.00 1,002.20
India Grid Trust 60,000.00 644.89 60,000.00 643.21
Bank of Baroda 49.00 504.60 49.00 504.37
State Bank of India 15.00 626.51 60.00 619.23
Mahindra & Mahindra 500.00 519.97 110.00 1,039.28
Shriram Transport Finance 440.00 4,593.48 220.00 2,271.89
Aditya Birla 50.00 578.73 50.00 531.95
Bajaj Finance 50.00 531.12 50.00 512.60
Kotak Mahindra 500.00 543.50 500.00 500.46
Punjab National Bank 50.00 505.89 - -
IIFL Home Finance Ltd - - 50.00 530.22

(A) 10,130.75 8,155.41
Debentures
Non-convertible debentures of L & T Finance MLD 200.00 2,214.33 200.00 2,056.27
Non-convertible debentures of HDB Financial Services 50.00 502.24 - -
Non-convertible debentures of Muthoot Finance Ltd 112,000.00 3,200.18 - -
Non-convertible debentures of ICICI HFCL 100.00 1,109.69 200.00 2,066.01
Non-convertible debentures of Bharti Telecom 1,500.00 1,543.45 - -

(B) 8,569.89 4,122.28
Commercial Paper
360 One Wam Limited 460.00 2,128.89 - -

(C) 2,128.89 -

Mutual Funds
Kotak Debt hybrid -Growth Regular Plan 1,278,681.66 670.14 1,278,681.66 571.29
Kotak Credit Risk Fund - Growth Regular Plan 2,434,478.82 655.18 2,434,478.82 605.33
Axis Regular Saver Fund - Regular Growth (ISGPG) - - 3,280,338.03 803.93
Aditya Birla Sun Life Low Duration Fund - Growth-Direct Plan 138,826.44 915.07 138,826.43 848.86
Aditya Birla Sun Life Regular Savings Fund Regular Plan Growth - - 1,870,167.65 985.74
ICICI Prudential PAMP Asset Allocation Fund (FOF)_Growth 508,022.72 524.98 508,022.72 432.38
ICICI PLFRAG Medium Term Bond Fund Growth 1,134,765.86 457.86 1,134,765.86 426.21
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund- Direct Plan 132,407.63 661.44 132,407.63 612.49

(D) 3,884.67 5,286.23
(A+B+C+D) 24,714.20 17,563.92

6 Other financial assets

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bank deposits (having remaining maturity of more than twelve months) 224.53 1,413.50 - -
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable - - 315.85 309.14
Export incentives receivable (refer note 41 (b) (ii)) - - 1,770.78 1,770.78
Advances/reimbursements receivable from related parties (refer note below) - - 374.50 796.91
Security deposits 739.25 578.71 - -
Other receivables - - 70.36 -
Unbilled receivables (refer note 7.2) - - 1,532.54 1,242.63

963.78 1,992.21 4,064.03 4,119.46

Advances/ reimbursements receivable from related parties (refer note 35) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cigniti Technologies Inc. 255.02 556.84
Cigniti Technologies (UK) Limited - 53.72
Cigniti Technologies Canada Inc. - 66.57
Cigniti Technologies (Australia) Pty Limited - 5.37
Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd. 119.48 114.41

374.50 796.91

CurrentNon current

March 31, 2023March 31, 2024
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7 Trade receivables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 35) 10,668.74 7,859.25
Trade receivables from other parties 3,745.94 2,304.26
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (187.21) (186.04)
Unsecured, credit impaired
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 35) - -
Trade receivables from other parties - -
Less: Allowance for credit impairment - -

14,227.47 9,977.47

7.1 Movement in the provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 186.04 191.89
Provision made/(reversed) during the year 0.26 (10.03)
Exchange difference 0.91 4.18
Balance at the end of the year 187.21 186.04

7.2 Ageing schedule- Trade receivables and unbilled receivables
As at March, 31 2024

Less than 6
Months

6 months – 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed receivables
Considered good                   1,532.54       10,663.83           3,603.98                      28.91                                -                                 -                         117.96                14,414.68
Credit impaired                              -                    -                        -                              -                                  -                                 -                                 -                            -
Total                   1,532.54       10,663.83           3,603.98                      28.91                                -                                 -                       117.96                14,414.68

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses                   (187.21)
Balance as at year end                   1,532.54                14,227.47

As at March, 31 2023

Less than 6
Months

6 months – 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed receivables
Considered good                   1,242.63         9,342.88              675.45                        8.24                          33.21                          44.01                         59.72                10,163.51
Credit impaired                              -                    -                        -                              -                                  -                                 -                                 -                              -
Total                   1,242.63         9,342.88              675.45                        8.24                          33.21                          44.01                         59.72                10,163.51
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses                   (186.04)
Balance as at year end                   1,242.63                  9,977.47

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The Company has recorded an allowance for credit loss of Rs.
20.44 lakhs on receivables relating to amounts owed by related party (March 31, 2023: Rs. 20.44 lakhs). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Current, not
due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total

Unbilled
receivables

Unbilled
receivables

Trade receivables

Trade receivables

Current, not
due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Total

There are no disputed trade receivables in the current and previous year.

Expected credit losses (ECL): The Company provides for ECL under the simplified approach from 1%-5% for trade receivables outstanding between 0-90 days and freely upto 100% for trade
receivables of more than 90 days based on past trends.

Trade receivables are generally with the credit term of 0 to 90 days and are non interest bearing.
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8 Cash and cash equivalents
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance with banks
- On current accounts 1,588.87 1,868.60
- Remittance in transit - 22.47

Unpaid dividend 29.60 16.50
Cash on hand - 0.13

1,618.47 1,907.70

8.1 For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8) 1,618.47 1,907.70
Less: Cash credit facility (refer note 15) (3,493.44) (3,043.67)

(1,874.97) (1,135.97)

9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other deposit accounts
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 224.53 1,413.50 5,631.57 6,278.17
Less: Amount disclosed under other financial assets (refer note 6) (224.53) (1,413.50) - -

- - 5,631.57 6,278.17
Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 1,810 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,700 lakhs) are subject to charge to fulfill collateral requirements of cash credit facility from bank.

9.1 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities and non-cash investing activities

Financing activities
 April 1, 2023  Addition  Cash flows  Others* March 31, 2024

Lease liabilities                 1,952.36 948.43                   (1,278.09)                       136.70                  1,759.40
Total liabilities from financing activities 1,952.36 948.43 (1,278.09) 136.70 1,759.40

 April 1, 2022  Addition  Cash flows  Others* March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities                 2,861.00 -                   (1,060.55)                       151.91                  1,952.36
Total liabilities from financing activities 2,861.00 - (1,060.55) 151.91 1,952.36
*Others includes the interest accrued for lease liabilities and exchange differences.

Non-cash investing activities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Acquisition of Right-of-use assets 948.43 -
948.43 -

10 Current tax assets (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Income tax receivable (net of provision for tax) 803.89 138.05
803.89 138.05

11 Other current assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Advances to vendors 32.93 6.45
Staff advances 33.45 140.14
Prepaid expenses 369.58 301.95
Balance with government authorities 847.03 1,030.70

1,282.99 1,479.24

Non- Current

No advances are due from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or advances due to firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

Current
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12 Deferred tax asset (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Deferred tax asset
Provision for employee benefits 948.97 669.87
Provision for doubtful debts 47.12 46.82
Right to use assets/lease liabilities 108.74 153.55

70.81 -

Gross deferred tax asset 1,175.64 870.24

Deferred tax liability

- (22.03)
Revaluations of investments to fair value (431.90) (147.42)

Gross deferred tax liability (431.90) (169.45)

743.74 700.79

March 31, 2024
Opening balance Recognised in the

statement of profit
and loss*

Closing
balance

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to :
(22.01) 92.82 70.81

Provision for employee benefits 669.87 279.10 948.97
Provision for doubtful debts 46.82 0.30 47.12
Right to use assets/lease liabilities 153.55 (44.81) 108.74
Revaluations of current investments to fair value (147.44) (284.46) (431.90)

700.79 42.95 743.74
* Includes deferred tax credit of Rs. 3.74 lakhs recognised through other comprehensive income on re-measurement gains on employee defined benefit plans.

March 31, 2023
Opening balance Recognised in the

statement of
profit and loss*

Closing
balance

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to :
(29.44) 7.43 (22.01)

Provision for employee benefits 503.69 166.18 669.87
Provision for doubtful debts 48.30 (1.48) 46.82
Right to use assets/lease liabilities 189.20 (35.65) 153.55
Revaluations of current investments to fair value (221.97) 74.53 (147.44)

489.78 211.01 700.79
* Includes deferred tax credit of Rs. 51.71 lakhs recognised through other comprehensive income on re-measurement gains on employee defined benefit plans.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax depreciation/amortization charged to
financial reporting

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax depreciation/ amortization charged to
financial reporting

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax depreciation/amortization charged to
financial reporting

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset, the impact of difference between tax depreciation/ amortization charged to
financial reporting
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13 Equity share capital
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorized share capital
36,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 36,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 3,600.00 3,600.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
27,300,084 (March 31, 2023: 27,256,959) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up 2,730.01 2,725.70
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 2,730.01 2,725.70

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares

No's Amount No's Amount
At the beginning of the year 27,256,959 2,725.70 28,052,509 2,805.25
Shares issued during the year against stock options 43,125 4.31 37,500 3.75
Less: Shares bought back (refer note a(i)) - - (833,050) (83.30)
Outstanding at the end of the year 27,300,084 2,730.01 27,256,959 2,725.70

(a)(i) Buy-back of shares

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder No's % holding No's % holding
P. Sapna 35.59 13.04% 35.59 13.06%
C. V. Subramanyam 27.98 10.25% 29.35 10.77%
C. Srikanth 25.00 9.16% 25.00 9.17%
Kukunuru Madhava Lakshmi 15.50 5.68% 16.00 5.87%

(d) Shares reserved for issue under options

(e) Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name
No. of shares at
the beginning of

the year

Change during the
year

No. of shares at the
end of the year % of Total Shares % change during

the year

P. Sapna                     35.59                              -                             35.59 13.04%                            -
C. V. Subramanyam                     29.35                         (1.37)                           27.98 10.25% -4.67%
C. Srikanth                     25.00                              -                             25.00 9.16%                            -
C. Rajeshwari                      4.39                         (3.52)                             0.87 0.32% -80.22%
P. Sudhakar                      0.01                              - 0.01 0.00%                            -

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, refer note 33.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts.  The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Board, at its meeting held on May 18, 2022, approved the buyback of the Company's fully paid-up equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each, from the eligible
equity shareholders of the Company, other than promoters, promoter group and persons who are in control of the Company at a price not exceeding Rs. 500 per
equity share (maximum buyback price), for an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs.3,800 lakhs (maximum buyback size, excluding buyback tax) from the open
market through the stock exchange mechanism, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Buyback of securities) Regulations, 2018,
subject to shareholders’ approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The shareholders approved the proposal of buyback of equity shares recommended by
its Board of Directors in the Annual General meeting held on June 19, 2022. The buyback was offered to all eligible equity shareholders of the Company (other than
the Promoters, the Promoter Group and Persons in Control of the Company) under the open market route through the stock exchange. The buyback of equity
shares through the stock exchange was completed on June 29, 2022. During this buyback period, the Company had purchased and completely extinguished a total
of 8,33,050 equity shares from the stock exchange at a volume weighted average buyback price of Rs. 456.13 per equity share comprising ~1.66% of the pre buyback
paid up equity share capital of the Company. The buyback resulted in a cash outflow of Rs. 3,799.77 lakhs (excluding transaction costs and tax on buyback). The
Company funded the buyback from its free reserves including Securities Premium as explained in Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013. In accordance with
Section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013, as at March 31, 2023, the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of Rs. 83.30 lakhs equal to the nominal value of
the above shares bought back as an appropriation from the retained earnings. The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or buy back issued shares. The Company has
only one class of equity shares and has no debt. Consequent to the above capital structure, there are no externally imposed capital requirements.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
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As at March 31, 2023

Promoter Name
No. of shares at
the beginning of

the year

Change during the
year

No. of shares at the
end of the year % of Total Shares % change during

the year

P. Sapna                     34.59                           1.00                           35.59 13.06% 2.89%
C. V. Subramanyam                     32.35                         (3.00)                           29.35 10.77% -9.27%
C. Srikanth                     25.00                              -                             25.00 9.17%                            -
C. Rajeshwari                      3.14                           1.25                             4.39 1.61% 39.76%
P. Sudhakar                      0.01                              -                               0.01 0.00%                            -

(f) Dividends distribution made and proposed
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dividends on equity shares declared and paid:
Final dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2023: Rs. 5.50 per share (March, 31 2022: Rs. 2.50 per share)* 1,499.96 687.70
Interim dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024: Rs. 3.00 per share (March, 31 2023: Rs. Nil)* 819.00                            -

2,318.96 687.70
Proposed dividend on equity shares:
Proposed dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2024: Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs. 5.50 per share) - 1,499.13

- 1,499.13
*Includes unclaimed dividend amount of Rs. 29.60 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 16.50 lakhs).

   14 Other equity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Securities premium
Opening balance 25,737.43 29,390.20
Add: Issue of equity shares on exercise of employee stock options 185.70 120.71
Less: Buyback of equity shares (refer note 13(a)(i)) - (3,773.48)
Closing balance 25,923.13 25,737.43

Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance 83.30 -
Transfer from retained earnings upon buyback (refer note 13(a)(i)) - 83.30
Closing balance 83.30 83.30

Share based payment reserve
Opening balance 419.69 111.53
Less: Issue of equity shares on exercise of employee stock options (151.20) (34.46)
Add: Share-based payment expense 194.32 342.62
Closing balance 462.81 419.69

Retained earnings
Opening balance 14,708.23 6,019.13
Less: Dividend (2,318.96) (687.70)
Add: Profit during the year 9,479.02 10,172.36
Less: Tax on buyback of shares (refer note 13(a)(i)) - (865.94)
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve upon buyback (refer note 13(a)(i)) - (83.30)
Items recognised directly in other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gain on employee defined benefit plans, net of tax 11.13 153.68
Closing balance 21,879.42 14,708.23

48,348.66 40,948.65

Proposed dividend on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at March 31, 2023. The dividend
declared/ paid and proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of The Companies Act, 2013.

There are no equity shares issued as bonus and issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.
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 Nature and purpose of reserves
14.1 Security premium reserve

14.2 Share based payment reserve

14.3 Retained earnings

14.4 Capital redemption reserve

15 Borrowings
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Secured
Cash credit from banks (refer note below) 3,493.44 3,043.67

3,493.44 3,043.67

16  Trade payables
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

63.82 103.63
A 63.82 103.63

Outstanding dues to related parties (refer note 35) 924.35 620.32
Outstanding dues to other parties 2,626.63 1,256.42

B 3,550.98 1,876.74
A+B 3,614.80 1,980.37

Trade payable ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed outstanding dues

Micro enterprises and small enterprises
- 37.99 25.83 - - - 63.82

Others 531.44 259.16 2,757.71 0.47 2.20 - 3,550.98
531.44 297.15 2,783.54 0.47 2.20 - 3,614.80

As at March 31, 2023

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed outstanding dues

Micro enterprises and small enterprises - 82.80 20.83 - - - 103.63

Others 1,020.92 200.23 652.70 2.89 - - 1,876.74
1,020.92 283.03 673.53 2.89 - - 1,980.37

There are no disputed trade payables in the current and previous year.

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-120 days terms.
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to note 38.

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

The share-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan. Refer note 33 for
further details of these plans.

Retained earnings comprises of prior year's undistributed earnings after taxes along with current year profit.

Unbilled Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 34)

Unbilled

(a) Cash credit from banks of Rs. 3,493.44 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 3,043.67 lakhs) is secured by hypothecation of trade receivables of the Company and exclusive
charge - cash collateral amounting to Rs. 1,810 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 1,700 lakhs) in the name of Company. It is repayable on demand and carries floating
interest rate of 8.50%p.a. (March 31, 2023: 8.50%p.a). The Company had available Rs. 106.56 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 556.33 lakhs) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities as at March 31, 2024.

The Company has taken loans against security of current assets and monthly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with bank are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

Capital redemption reserve is created for the amount equal to face value of shares bought back during the previous year.
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17 Lease liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities (refer note 42) 513.53 927.81 1,245.87 1,024.55

                      513.53                         927.81 1,245.87                  1,024.55
Interest payable is normally settled monthly throughout the financial year.

18 Other financial liabilities

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost
Advances from related parties (refer note 35) - - 1,599.01 1,875.89
Contingent consideration - 520.15 154.34 646.04
Capital creditors - - 299.07 121.81
Unclaimed dividend - - 29.60 16.50

-                         520.15                     2,082.02                  2,660.24

19 Provisions

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provisions for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 2,410.57 1,665.07 500.00 500.00
Provision for leave benefits - - 859.98 496.54

2,410.57 1,665.07 1,359.98 996.54

20  Current tax liabilities (net)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for taxation (net of advance tax) 861.85 1,204.10
861.85 1,204.10

21 Other current liabilities
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Statutory dues 1,013.64 723.37
1,013.64 723.37

CurrentNon-Current

Non-current Current

Non-current Current
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22 Revenue from operations
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from Digital Assurance and Engineering (Software testing) Services 78,872.73 69,664.29

22.1 Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Related parties (refer note 35) 70,233.97 62,199.21
Others 8,638.76 7,465.08
Total revenue from contracts with customers 78,872.73 69,664.29

22.2 Contract balances
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Contract assets
Trade receivables, net (refer note 7) 14,227.47 9,977.47 8,709.47
Unbilled receivables (refer note 6) 1,532.54 1,242.63 928.52

22.3 Performance obligation

22.4

Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2024

 Year ended
March 31, 2023

                   78,872.73                             69,664.29
Adjustments :
Discounts                                 -                                            -

                   78,872.73                             69,664.29

23 Other income
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Exchange differences, net 18.88 334.57
Change in fair value of financial liabilities 327.85 9.20
Reversal of provision for expected credit loss, net - 10.03

346.73 353.80

24 Finance income
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on bank deposits 419.60 373.35
Income on fair valuation of investments through profit and loss 1,807.98 601.86
Interest income on income tax refund - 6.14

2,227.58 981.35

25 Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus* 55,855.26 44,931.88
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 32(II)) 693.11 655.39
Share-based payment expense - 1.18
Gratuity expense (refer note 32(I)) 1,057.61 854.02
Staff welfare expenses 1,163.02 769.28

58,769.00 47,211.75

The Company has arrangements with the customer which are “time and material” basis. The performance obligation in case of time and material contracts is satisfied over
time. Revenue is recognised as and when the services are performed.

The Company also performs work under “fixed-price” arrangements. Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognized as per the ‘percentage- of-completion’ method,
where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and when there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is uncertainty
as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Percentage of completion is determined based on the
project costs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated project costs required to complete the project. The input method has been used to measure the progress
towards completion as there is direct relationship between input and productivity. There is no unrecognised revenue out of fixed-price arrangements.

The payment is due with in 0-90 days from the time the customer accepts the work performed by the Company.

*Salaries, wages and bonus includes an amount of Rs. 2,031.00 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil) towards accrual of long service rewards for certain employees on completion
of 25 years of the Company.

Contract assets
Unbilled receivables: Unbilled receivables are initially recognised for the revenue earned in excess of amounts billed to clients as at the balance sheet date. Upon
completion of acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as unbilled receivables are reclassified to trade receivables. During the year ended March 31, 2024, Rs.
1,239.27 lakhs of unbilled receivables as at March 31, 2023 has been reclassified to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation. During the year ended March
31, 2023, Rs. 912.87 lakhs of unbilled receivables as at March 31, 2022 has been reclassified to trade receivables on completion of performance obligation.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price

Revenue from contracts with customers
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26 Hired contractors costs
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hired contractors costs 1,586.10 2,279.89

1,586.10 2,279.89

27 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Power and fuel 516.50 410.24
Rent 82.08 87.37
Repairs and maintenance - others 544.78 294.67
Advertising, marketing and sales promotion 775.67 359.30
Travelling and conveyance 1,240.95 1,410.67
Communication costs 319.82 161.97
Software licensing cost 1,285.71 1,384.01
Legal and professional fees 469.63 663.18
Rates and taxes 226.87 127.62
Insurance 34.42 23.72
Printing and stationery 67.96 87.00
Recruitment expenses 87.42 153.18
Payment to auditor (refer note below) 165.72 147.67
Provision for expected credit loss, net 0.26 -
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities - 212.18
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note below) 168.58 119.01
Provision for diminution in the value of investment 52.91 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 7.91 -
Miscellaneous expenses - 3.79

6,047.19 5,645.58

Payment to Auditor
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As auditor
Audit fee 94.35 78.00
Limited review 67.98 60.00
In other capacity
Certification services 2.06 7.00
Reimbursement of expenses 1.33 2.67

165.72 147.67

Details of Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: 168.58 119.01
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 168.58 119.01
(c)  Amount spent during the year  Paid in cash  Paid in cash

i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 168.58 119.01

(d) Details related to spent/unspent obligations
i) Contribution to Public Trust - -
ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust 168.58 119.01

 iii) Unspent amount in relation to:
 -     Ongoing project - -
 -     Other than ongoing project - -

Nature of CSR Activities: Promoting education, healthcare initiatives and other social  projects.

28 Depreciation and amortization expense
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1,228.32 1,174.72
Amortization of right-to-use asset (refer note 42) 963.31 766.99

2,191.63 1,941.71

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act.
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29 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expense 51.53 21.96
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 42) 136.70 151.91
Other borrowing costs 18.25 14.87
Factoring and bank charges 8.97 19.05

215.45 207.79

30 Tax expense
(a) Income tax expense:

The major components of income tax expenses are :
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax 3,205.34 3,803.08
Deferred tax (46.69) (262.72)
Total income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss relating to current year 3,158.65 3,540.36

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before tax (A) 12,637.67 13,712.72
Enacted tax rate in India (B) 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax expenses (C = A * B) 3,180.65 3,451.22

Reconciling items:
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences and set off of taxable profits for the year against the carry forward of
taxable losses

18.09 59.19

Tax on expenses not tax deductible (40.09) 29.95
Total tax expense 3,158.65 3,540.36
Effective tax rate 24.99% 25.82%

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing regulations under Sections 92-92F
of the Income-Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company continuously updates
its documents for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year. The management is of the opinion that its
international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense
for the year and that of provision for taxation.
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31 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic earnings 9,479.02 10,172.36
Weighted average number of equity shares in computing basic EPS (No. in lakhs) 272.88 274.50
Add: Effect of dilution:

     Employee stock options (No. in lakhs) 1.23 0.50
Weighted Average number of equity shares adjusted for effect of dilution (No. in lakhs) 274.11 275.00
Face value of each equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Earnings per share
   - Basic  (Rs.) 34.74 37.06
   - Diluted (Rs.) 34.58 36.99

There have been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and date of authorisation of these financial statements.

32 Retirement and other employee benefits

I Defined benefit plan

A) Net employee benefit expense (recognised in Employee benefits expense)
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 934.98 753.82
Interest cost 216.58 145.09
Expected return on plan assets (66.19) (44.89)
Less: Gratuity cost reimbursed by the subsidiary company for employees transferred to the Company (27.76) -
Net employee benefit expenses 1,057.61 854.02
Actual return on plan asset 66.19 44.89

B) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Defined benefit obligation 3,939.39 2,965.16
Fair value of plan assets 1,028.82 800.09

2,910.57 2,165.07

C) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 2,965.16 2,476.53
Current service cost 934.98 753.82
Interest cost 216.58 145.09
Benefits paid (162.45) (195.86)
Net actuarial gain on obligation for the year recognised under OCI (14.87) (214.42)
Closing defined benefit obligation 3,939.39 2,965.16

D) Change in the fair value of plan assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening fair value of plan assets 800.09 707.57
Investment income 66.19 44.89
Employer's contribution 324.99 252.54
Benefits paid (162.45) (195.86)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense - (9.05)
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,028.82 800.09

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Investments with LIC 100.00% 100.00%

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, governed by Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to
a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded through a policy with LIC. The following tables
summarise net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss, the status of funding and the amount recognised in the Balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 500 lakhs to the gratuity fund in the next year (March 31, 2023: Rs. 500 lakhs).
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E) Remeasurement adjustments:
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Experience (gain)/ loss on plan liabilities (75.41) 32.43
Financial loss/ (gain) on plan liabilities 60.54 (246.87)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense - 9.05
Remeasurement gains recognised in other comprehensive income (14.87) (205.39)
Remeasurement gains recognised in the current year are excluding the impact of deferred tax expense of Rs. 3.74 lakhs (March 31,2023 : Rs 51.71 lakhs).

(i) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.23% 7.51%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.24% 5.95%
Salary rise 12.00% 12.00%
Attrition rate 20.00% 20.00%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the actual rate of return during the current year.

(ii) Disclosure related to indication of effect of the defined benefit plan on the entity’s future cashflows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Expected benefit payments for the year ended:
1 year 455.85 373.68
2-5 years 2,028.60 1,529.62
6-10 years 1,865.83 1,410.58
More than 10 years 2,105.28 1,619.07
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7 years (March 31, 2023:  6.43 years).

(iii) Sensitivity analysis:
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption on defined benefit obligation is as shown below:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Effect of 1% change in assumed discount rate

 - 1% increase (208.35) (154.10)
 - 1% decrease 231.58 171.15

(b) Effect of 1% change in assumed salary escalation rate
 - 1% increase 199.64 149.51
 - 1% decrease (191.78) (142.98)

(c) Effect of change by 50% of attrition rate
 -  increase by 50% of the attrition rate (426.99) (305.25)
 -  decrease by 50% of the attrition rate 800.09 575.02

II Defined contribution plan
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribution to provident and other funds 693.11 655.39

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.
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33 Share based payments

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions* 194.32 342.62

Movements during the year: The following table illustrates movements in share options during the year:
(Numbers in lakhs)

Particulars
Scheme 2014 Scheme 2015 Scheme 2014 Scheme 2015

Total No. of options under the scheme 25.00 5.00 25.00 5.00
Outstanding at April 1 0.75 2.15 0.75 2.55
Exercised during the year 0.28 0.15 - 0.38
Expired during the year - - - 0.03
Outstanding at March 31 0.47 2.00 0.75 2.15
Exercisable at March 31 - 1.00 - 0.65

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was Rs 803.47 (March 31, 2023: Rs 485.10)
The following table lists the weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Scheme 2014 5.33 5.58
Scheme 2015 2.33 3.15

There are no grants during the current year and previous year. The following tables list the inputs to the model used for the year ended March 31, 2022:

 Scheme 2014  Scheme 2015
Dividend yield 0.49% - 0.54% 0.49%
Expected volatility 42.98% - 47.40% 43.33% - 49.12%
Risk-free interest rate 4.31% - 6.20% 4.77% - 6.05%
Expected life of options granted in years 2 - 5 years 2 - 5 years
Weighted average share price 494.26 505.90
Model used

34
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

63.82 103.63
- -

63.82 103.63

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
Interest due on above

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year

Under the Employee Stock Option Plan, the Company, at its discretion, may grant share options to employees of the Company. The remuneration committee of the board
evaluates the performance and other criteria of employees and approves the grant of options. These options vest with employees over a specified period ranging from 1 to 5
years subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. Upon vesting, employees are eligible to apply and secure allotment of Company’s shares at a price equal to the face value.
The fair value of share options granted is estimated at the date of grant using a Black- Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. It takes into account historical and expected dividends, and the share price fluctuation covariance of the Company and its competitors to predict the
distribution of relative share performance.

*The above expense include expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions of the subsidiaries amounting to Rs. 194.32 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 341.44
lakhs).

Black-Scholes model

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

March 31, 2023

The range of exercise prices for the options outstanding at the beginning, forfeited, exercised, expired and outstanding at the end of the year is Rs 10 - Rs 506 (March 31, 2023:
Rs 240 - Rs 506).

The expected life of the stock is based on the historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise pattern that may occur. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2024
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35 Related party disclosures

Names of related parties and description of relationship
Name of the related party Relationship
Subsidiaries
Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies Canada Inc., Canada Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies (UK) Limited, UK Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies (Australia) Pty Ltd, Australia Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies (NZ) Ltd, New Zealand Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd., Singapore Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies (CZ) Limited s.r.o, Czech Republic Wholly owned subsidiary
Cigniti Technologies CR Limitada,Costa Rica Wholly owned subsidiary
Gallop Solutions Private Limited, India Wholly owned subsidiary
Aparaa Digital Private Limited, India Wholly owned subsidiary
RoundSqr, Inc.,USA Step down subsidiary (dissolved on January 30, 2023)
RoundSqr Pty Ltd.,Australia Step down subsidiary

Key Management Personnel
Mr. C. V. Subramanyam Director (Chairman & Managing director upto November 3, 2023)
Mr. C. Srikanth Director & Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f  January 20, 2024)
Mr. Krishnan Venkatachary Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Naga Vasudha Company Secretary
Mr. Ram Krishna Agarwal Independent director
Mr. Phaneesh Murthy Independent director
Ms. Nooraine Fazal Independent director
Mr. Srinath Batni Independent director
Mr. Sudhakar Pennam Non-Executive Director (w.e.f March 07, 2024)
Mr. K CH Subbarao Non-Executive Director (upto June 16, 2023)*

Transactions/ balances with above parties

March 31, 2024

Subsidiaries Cigniti Technologies
Inc., USA

Cigniti Technologies
Canada Inc.,

Canada

Cigniti Technologies
(UK) Limited, UK

Cigniti Technologies
(Australia) Pty Ltd,

Australia

Cigniti Technologies
(NZ) Limited,
New Zealand

Gallop Solutions
Private. Ltd, India

Aparaa Digital
Private. Ltd, India

Cigniti
Technologies (SG)
Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Cigniti
Technologies (CZ)

Limited s.r.o., Czech
Republic

Cigniti Technologies CR
Limitada, Costa Rica

Transactions during the year
Rendering of Digital Assurance and Engineering
(Software testing) Services

59,104.91 2,782.55 7,432.36 697.85 - - 216.30 - - -

Reimbursement of expenses incurred by CTL India 266.93 17.99 7.34 5.26 - 0.08 102.25 3.50 - -
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by CT Inc. USA (67.75) - - - - - - - - -
Provision for diminution in the value of investment - - - - - 52.91 - - - -

Balances receivable/(payable)
Trade receivables (including unbilled revenue) 6,183.18 983.59 3,912.63 111.60 20.44 - 233.61 - - -
Allowance for expected credit losses - - - - (20.44) - - - - -
Advances receivable 255.02 - - - - - - 119.48 - -
Advances payable (1,546.27) - - - - (52.56) - - (0.17) -
Investments 5,549.49 0.00 839.57 442.25 0.00 110.00 3,234.01 0.00 0.17 0.02
Provision for diminution in the value of investment - - - - - (52.91) - - - -

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. C. V.

Subramanyam
Mr. Krishnan
Venkatachary

Ms. Naga Vasudha Mr. Ram Krishna
Agarwal

Ms. Nooraine
Fazal

Mr. Srinath
Batni

Mr. C. Srikanth Mr. Sudhakar
Pennam

Transactions during the year
Remuneration 200.33 923.71 35.88 43.26 43.26 43.26 9.86 -
Gratuity paid 20.00 - - - - - - -
Director sitting fees 6.00 - - 26.00 24.00 24.00 - 2.00

Balances receivable/(payable)
Remuneration payable (79.24) (711.57) (1.50) (43.26) (43.26) (43.26) (2.28) -



Cigniti Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1998PLC030081
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2023
Subsidiaries Cigniti Technologies Inc.,

USA
Cigniti Technologies
Canada Inc., Canada

Cigniti Technologies
(UK) Limited, UK

Cigniti Technologies
(Australia) Pty Ltd,

Australia

Cigniti Technologies
(NZ) Limited, New

Zealand

Gallop Solutions
Pvt. Ltd, India

Aparaa Digital
Private. Ltd, India

Cigniti
Technologies (SG)
Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Cigniti
Technologies (CZ)

Limited s.r.o., Czech
Republic

Cigniti Technologies CR
Limitada, Costa Rica

Transactions during the year
Rendering of Digital Assurance and Engineering
(Software testing) Services

54,013.15 2,395.39 5,311.35 479.32 - - - - - -

Hired contractors cost - - - - - - 728.83 - - -
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by CTL India 419.46 39.38 20.08 2.18 - - 727.29 23.87 - -
Reimbursement of expenses incurred by CT Inc. USA (43.55) - - - - - - - - -

Balances receivable/(payable)
Trade receivables (including unbilled revenue) 4,905.84 570.27 2,082.63 123.12 20.44 - - - - -
Advances receivable 556.84 66.57 53.72 5.37 - - - 114.41 - -
Advances payable (1,821.99) - - - - (52.64) (1.09) - (0.17) -
Investments 5,549.49 0.00 839.57 442.25 0.00 110.00 3,234.01 0.00 0.17 0.02

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. C. V. Subramanyam Mr. Krishnan

Venkatachary
Ms. Naga Vasudha Mr. Ram Krishna

Agarwal
Ms. Nooraine Fazal Mr. Srinath Batni

Transactions during the year
Remuneration 725.00 174.09 28.04 48.00 48.00 48.00
Director sitting fees - - - 24.00 17.00 18.00

Balances receivable/(payable)
Remuneration payable (465.00) (10.15) (1.17) (48.00) (48.00) (48.00)

*Mr. K CH Subbarao was the director of the Group until June 15, 2023 and resigned w.e.f June 16, 2023. Accordingly, any transactions of the Company with Mr. K CH Subbarao and the entities (where he is a director/member) have not been disclosed as related party transactions for the period after June 15,
2023.

In the previous year, the key management personnel (Mr. C.V Subramanyam) has given personal guarantees to bankers in connection with cash credit facility whose closing balance on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 3,043.67 lakhs. There is no personal guarantee for the current year ended March 31, 2024.
As the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the Key Management personnel and their relatives is not ascertainable and, therefore, not included above.
The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. Outstanding balances at the
year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash.
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36 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements

Within 5 Years More than 5 Years Total
Extension options expected not to be exercised 3,580.98 - 3,580.98

Estimates and assumptions

(i) Taxes

(ii) Defined employee benefit plans (Gratuity)

(iii) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

37 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Investments                  24,739.20                    17,563.92                  24,739.20                 17,563.92
Trade receivables                  14,227.47                      9,977.47                  14,227.47                   9,977.47
Cash and cash equivalents                    1,618.47                      1,907.70                    1,618.47                   1,907.70
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents                    5,631.57                      6,278.17                    5,631.57                   6,278.17
Other financial assets                    5,027.81                      6,111.67                    5,027.81                   6,111.67

Financial liabilities
Borrowings                    3,493.44                      3,043.67                    3,493.44                   3,043.67
Lease liabilities                    1,759.40                      1,952.36                    1,759.40                   1,952.36
Other financial liabilities                    2,082.02                      3,180.39                    2,082.02                   3,180.39
Trade payables                    3,614.80                      1,980.37                    3,614.80                   1,980.37

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal . After the commencement date, the Company
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies (Refer note 30).

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
• Capital management Note 40
• Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 38
• Sensitivity analyses disclosures Notes 32 and 38.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options – Company as lessee

Undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term:

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 32.

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

The Company has determined the allowance for credit losses based on the ageing status and historical loss experience adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic
conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the Company deals with and the countries where it operates. In
calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered historical pattern of credit loss, the likelihood of increased credit risk.

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Further, the management has assessed that fair value of borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts largely since they are carried at floating rate of interest.

Carrying value Fair value

(iv) Allowance for credit losses on receivables and unbilled revenue

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in
a forced or liquidation sale.



Cigniti Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1998PLC030081
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value hierarchy
Valuation technique and key inputs

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in other entities (Unquoted)
Investment in compulsory convertible preference shares of Hirexai Private Limited                       25.00                                 -                                 -                          25.00

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in bonds, quoted                10,130.75                    10,130.75                               -                                -
Investment in debentures, quoted                  8,569.89                      8,569.89                               -                                -
Investment in commercial paper, quoted                  2,128.89                      2,128.89                               -                                -
Investment in mutual funds, quoted                  3,884.67                      3,884.67                               -                                -

Liabilities
Contingent consideration                     154.34 -                               -                        154.34

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments as at March 31, 2023:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in bonds, quoted                  8,155.41 8,155.41                               -                                -
Investment in debentures, quoted                  4,122.28 4,122.28                               -                                -
Investment in mutual funds, quoted                  5,286.23 5,286.23                               -                                -

Liabilities
Contingent consideration                  1,166.19                                 -                                 -                     1,166.19
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the current and previous years.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of investments classified as FVTOCI assets (level 3) :
The following table represents changes in level 3 items for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:
Particulars Investment in

unquoted equity
and preferred
instruments

As at April 01, 2023                              -
Purchases                        25.00

                             -
Sales                              -
As at March 31, 2024                        25.00

As at April 01, 2022                              -
Purchases                              -

                             -
Sales                              -
As at March 31, 2023                              -

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Fair value measurement at the end of the year using

Fair value measurement at the end of the year using

Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income
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38 Financial risk management objectives and policies

A

B Liquidity Risk

March 31, 2024: On demand Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Contractual undiscounted payments
Borrowings                  3,493.44                               -                                   -                                 -                   3,493.44
Lease liabilities                             -                      1,322.05                         542.36                               -                   1,864.41
Trade payables                             -                      3,612.13                             2.67                               -                   3,614.80
Other financial liabilities                             -                      2,082.02                                 -                                 -                   2,082.02

                 3,493.44                    7,016.20                         545.03                               -                 11,054.67

March 31, 2023: On demand Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
Contractual undiscounted payments
Borrowings                  3,043.67                               -                                     -                                 -                   3,043.67
Lease liabilities                             -                      1,113.62                         947.98                               -                   2,061.60
Trade payables                             -                      1,980.37                                   -                                 -                   1,980.37
Other financial liabilities                             -                      2,698.20                         684.00                                 -                   3,382.20

                 3,043.67                    5,792.19                      1,631.98                               -                 10,467.84

C

As at March 31, 2024, the Company had 16 customers (March 31, 2023: 18 customers) that owed the Company more than 1% each of total receivable from parties other than related
parties and accounted for approximately 94% (March 31, 2023: 94%) of receivables. There were 3 customers (March 31, 2023: 6 customers) with balances greater than 5% accounting for
approximately 62% (March 31, 2023: 68%) of total amounts receivable from parties other than related parties.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that
funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by availing appropriate borrowing facilities from banks as and
when required, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has adequate provision as at March 31, 2024 amounting to Rs.187.21 lakhs  (As at March 31, 2023: Rs. 186.04 lakhs) for receivables.

Market Risk

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other market changes. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in
foreign currencies are all constant.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.  None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk, except for trade receivables.

The Company considers a counterparty whose payment is due more than 90 days after the due date as a defaulted party. This is based on considering the market and economic forces
in which the entities in the Company are operating. The Company creates provision for the amount if the credit risk of counter-party increases significantly due to its poor financial
position and failure to make payment beyond a period of 90 days from the due date. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered historical pattern of credit
loss, the likelihood of increased credit risk.

The customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Before accepting any new customer,
the Company uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed on periodic basis. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company's receivables turnover is quick and historically, there were no significant
defaults. Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109. The Company assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets are impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix.
The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Trade receivables as contract assets

Credit Risk
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C1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate sensitivity

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
March 31, 2024

Indian Rupees 0.50% -0.50% 2.77 (2.77)

March 31, 2023
Indian Rupees 0.50% -0.50% 1.42 (1.42)

C2 .Foreign currency risk

Unhedged foreign currency exposure:

Currency Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%
USD 59.13                       (59.13)
EUR 1.43                         (1.43)
ZAR 5.36                         (5.36)
AED 31.55                       (31.55)
SGD 3.58                         (3.58)
CAD 9.84                         (9.84)
AUD 1.12                         (1.12)
GBP 39.13 (39.13)

Currency Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%
USD 59.19                       (59.19)
EUR 2.20                         (2.20)
ZAR 1.48                         (1.48)
AED 15.25                       (15.25)
SGD 1.83                         (1.83)
CAD 6.37                         (6.37)
AUD 1.28                         (1.28)
GBP 21.36                       (21.36)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as follows:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and equity, where any transaction
references more than one currency or where assets / liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the respective entities.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the volatility of the Company’s net financial assets (which includes cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables, other financial liabilities), which are denominated in various foreign currencies (viz. USD, AED, AUD, ZAR, GBP,
CAD, EUR, SGD etc.).

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

Change in basis points Effect on profit before tax

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

For the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 , every 1% increase /(decrease) of the respective foreign currencies compared to functional currency of the company would
impact profit before tax and equity before tax as follows for the respective currencies:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's working capital obligations with floating interest rates.
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39 Segment reporting

40 Capital management

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings                 3,493.44                              3,043.67
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 8)                (1,618.47)                            (1,907.70)
         Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9)                (5,631.57)                            (6,278.17)
         Current investments (refer note 5)              (24,714.20)                          (17,563.92)
Net debt*                            -                                         -

Equity                 2,730.01                              2,725.70
Other equity               48,348.66                            40,948.65
Total capital               51,078.67                            43,674.35
Capital and net debt               51,078.67                            43,674.35

Gearing ratio (Net debt/ Capital and net debt) 0% 0%
* Since the Company has cash surplus, the net debt for the purpose of computation of gearing ratio is taken as zero.

41 Commitments, contingencies and other litigations

a. Commitments

b. Contingent liabilities
(i)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at March 31, 2024 is Rs. 19.88 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. Nil).

(a) In the earlier years, the Company had received a draft Transfer Pricing (TP) assessment order for A.Y. 2017-2018 under section 92CA(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 proposing an
adjustment of Rs. 6,285.52 lakhs involving tax implication of approximately Rs. 2078.18 lakhs, excluding interest and penalty. The adjustments majorly pertains to transfer pricing
margin adjustment and interest on loans and advances to subsidiaries. Subsequently, the Company had received the final order with the proposed adjustment as mentioned in the
draft order. Management had filed an appeal with the tax authorities and is currently pending with Commissioner (Appeals) /Dispute Resolution Panel (DRP).

(b) In the earlier years, the Company had received an assessment order for A.Y. 2018-2019 under section 143(3) read with section 144C(13) of Income Tax Act, 1961 proposing an
adjustment of Rs. 596.53 lakhs involving tax implication of approximately Rs. 268.56 lakhs, excluding interest and penalty. The adjustments majorly pertains to interest on delayed
trade receivables and interest on loans and advances to subsidiaries. Management has filed an appeal with the tax authorities and is currently pending with Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal (ITAT).

Management has assessed the order and based on expert advice and its documentation relating to the international transactions, believes that the Company has a strong basis to
support its position and that the likelihood of any liability devolving on the Company on account of transfer pricing adjustment is remote. The Company has adequate provision in the
books for the potential liability, if any, which may arise out of other adjustments.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure in consideration to the changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents.

The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at an optimal level to ensure that the debt related covenants are complied with.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year and previous year.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on Operating segments, segment information has been given in the consolidated financial statements of the Company,
and therefore no separate disclosure on segment information is given in these financial statements.
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(ii)

(iii)

c. Other litigations:

42 Leases
Company as lessee

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance 1,342.24                              2,109.24
Additions 948.43                                         -
Amortization (963.31)                               (766.99)
Closing balance                 1,327.36                              1,342.24

In the earlier years, the Company had received a show cause notice from the Department of Foreign Trade (DGFT) dated August 25, 2020 and from the Directorate of Revenue
Intelligence (DRI), Ahmedabad dated December 28, 2020, stating that the services provided by the Company are not covered under technical testing and analysis services and it
appears that the Company provides services through subsidiaries in the foreign countries and accordingly the services rendered by the Company fall under the definition of service
rendered through commercial presence in a foreign country which is not eligible for Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS) benefits. The notice calls upon the Company to show
cause as to why (a) The Scrips granted amounting to Rs 659.93 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2017, should not be cancelled/ recovered from the Company and (b) The penalty
should not be imposed as per Customs Act, 1962.

The Company had filed responses against the aforesaid show cause notices as per the legal opinion. Based on their internal assessment and legal opinion, Management believes that the
software testing services being provided by the Company are eligible under the SEIS and will be able to establish the services will not fall in the category of “Supply of services through
commercial presence”. In view of the above, the Management believes that the export incentive recognised for the period April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2020 amounting to Rs. 1,770.78
lakhs are fully recoverable (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,770.78 lakhs).

(a) In the earlier years, the Company had received a letter from Office of the Joint Director, Enforcement Directorate, Hyderabad, initiating enquiry under the provisions of Foreign
Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) requesting for certain documents. The Joint Director had called for an in person hearing where the Company had submitted the necessary
information. Subsequently, the Company has received a show cause notice dated September 4, 2023, from ED to show cause as to why the inquiry should not be held and penalty
should not be imposed against the Company for the certain contraventions relating to issue of shares to a resident entity against money received from an overseas entity and other
procedural delays in filing documents. The Company has submitted responses and has made application to RBI for compounding of delays.

(b) In the earlier years, the Company had made foreign investments aggregating to USD 1,002.00 (equivalent) towards equity capital of three foreign subsidiaries without obtaining
overseas direct investment (ODI) certificate from RBI. The Company is in the process of obtaining ODI approval from RBI and is in the process of compounding FEMA related non
compliances.

(c) The Company has incorporated subsidiary i.e. Cigniti Technologies CR Limitada in Costa Rica, US, in the previous year and Cigniti Technologies (SG) Pte. Ltd in Singapore and
Cigniti Technologies (CZ) Limited s.r.o, in Czech Republic in the earlier years. Investments with respect to share capital subscriptions of such entities is in progress as at balance sheet
date as the Company is in the process of making the required filings with Reserve Bank of India.

Management is in the process of addressing the above matters and in view of the administrative/procedural nature of these non-compliances, believes that they will not have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In the earlier years, Cigniti Technologies Inc., USA (Cigniti USA), subsidiary of the Company had filed a lawsuit against it's former employees and an entity related to such employees,
for inter alia misappropriation of trade secrets and various breaches of contract and fiduciary duty. Subsequent to the year end, Cigniti USA has entered into a settlement agreement
with its former employees and an entity related to such employees, to settle the dispute and withdraw the litigation, for an amount of USD 4.01 million equivalent to ~Rs.3,330.30
lakhs. Further, the subsidiary company has received USD 1.01 million as part of the settlement agreement and the same has been recognised under other income for the year ended
March 31,2024.

The Company has entered into leases of office premises with no restrictions and are renewable at the option of either of the parties for a period of 11 months to 5 years. The escalation
rates range from 0% to 10% per annum as per the terms of the lease agreement. There are no sub-leases. The Company also has certain leases spaces including guest houses with lease
terms of 12 months or less and with low value. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance                 1,952.36                              2,861.00
Additions                    948.43                                           -
Accretion of interest                    136.70                                 151.91
Payments                (1,278.09)                            (1,060.55)
Closing balance                 1,759.40                              1,952.36
Current                 1,245.87                              1,024.55
Non-current                    513.53                                 927.81

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 38.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 6.5%, with maturity between 2024-2027.

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Amortization of right to use asset                    963.31                                 766.99
Interest on lease liabilities                    136.70                                 151.91

                     82.08                                   87.37
Expense relating to short term and low value leases                 1,182.09                              1,006.27

43 Ratio analysis and its elements
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 % change Reason for

variance
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities                        3.83                        3.56 7%
Debt- Equity Ratio Total debt* Shareholder’s equity                        0.10                        0.11 -10%
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net

profit after taxes + Non-cash
operating expenses + Finance
cost

Debt service = Interest & Lease
Payments + Principal
repayments

                       9.59                      11.76 -18%

Return on equity ratio Net profits after taxes Average shareholder’s equity 20% 25% -19%
Trade receivable turnover ratio Net credit sales = Gross credit

sales - sales return
Average trade receivable                        6.52                        7.46 -13%

Trade payable turnover ratio Other expenses + Employee
benefit expense + Hired
contractors cost

Average trade payables                      23.74                      34.12 -30% Note (a)

Net capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales
return

Working capital = Current
assets – Current liabilities

                       2.04                        2.34 -13%

Net profit ratio Net profit after taxes Net sales = Total sales - sales
return

12% 15% -18%

Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and
taxes

Capital Employed = Tangible
Net Worth + Total debt

23% 29% -20%

Return on investment# Finance income Time weighted average
investment

9% 4% 110% Note (b)

*Debt includes lease liabilities.
# Mutual funds, ETFs, bonds and debentures are considered for the purpose of computing return on investments.

Explanations given where the change in the ratio is more than 25% as compared to the preceding year.
Notes:
a)  Change in ratio is due to increase in trade payables on account of accrual of long service rewards during the current year.
b)  Change in ratio is due to increase in returns from investments in current year.

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 1,278.09 lakhs in current year (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,060.54 lakhs). The entire amount is in the nature of fixed lease payments. The
Company has Rs. 948.43 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil) of non-cash additions to right-of-use assets.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-
asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension option are reasonably certain to be
exercised (refer note 36).

Short term lease expense (refer note 27)




